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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF STAR HOSPITAL LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of STAR HOSPITAL LIMITED (“the
Company”), which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad 31, 2081, (July
15, 2024), Statement of Profit or Loss, the Statement of Change in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatery infermation (hereafter referred to as “the financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion of our report,
the accompanying financial statements presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company, as at Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024), and its financial performance,
changes in equity, cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information, in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards and comply with Company Act, 2063, and other prevailing laws.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

i. The Company has purchased Store Consumables of NPR. 19,631,438 and
Pharmaceuticals of NPR. 63,950,189 during the year. Store Stock and Pharmacy Stock
shows balance of NPR. 4,966,846 and NPR. 26,835,237 respectively for the Financial
Year 2080-81. However, actual consumption and closing position of these stocks was
not verifiable due to unavailability of requisite details related to flow of such items in and
out of the company. In the absence of such details, the impact, if any, on the financial
statements is currently not ascertainable,

i. The Company has borrowed funds from bank as well as its shareholders to meet its
short term as well as long term requirements. However, the interest expenses on loan
from bank amounting NPR. 87,166,124 has not recognized on accrual basis of
accounting.

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with Nepal Standards on
Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report, We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Handbook of The Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ICAN's Handbook
of The Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion on the
financial statements.

Key audit matters: Our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that in our professional judgement, were of most

significance in the audit of the financial statement and include the most significant assessed

risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identifiad, including those which

had the greatest effect on the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; Fm
o]

and directing the efforts of the engagement team. /e o
Key Audit Matter | Auditor’'s Response e ;5.;;]' ¢ 2R Us
Revenue from the rendering of service The revenue recognition process of the

| (here in after referred to as “Revenue”) i hospital, includes the automatic recording
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is recognized when the Hospital
performs its obligation to its customers
and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably and recovery of the
consideration is probable.

Revenue is a significant account in the
hospital's financial statements and is
derived from various streams, including
inpatient services, outpatient services,
diagnostics,  surgical  procedures,
pharmacy sales, and third-party billing
(e.g., insurance and government
healthcare schemes). Revenue
recognition is considered a key audit
matter due to:

e The complexity involved in
recognizing revenue at the
appropriate time, particularly when
services are delivered over time (e.g.,
multi-day hospital admissions).

e Risk of management override or
misstatements arising from
performance-based targets that may
influence the timing or amount of
revenue recognized.

e The volume of transactions and
reliance on IT systems for processing
and recording revenue.

of revenue in the accounting system
through the income ledger upon issuance
of bills for the various medical services
provided and sales of medicines. Our audit
approach regarding the verification of
process of revenue recognition included:

e Evaluating the appropriateness of the
hospital's revenue recognition policies in
accordance with the applicable financial
reporting framework.

o Testing the design, implementation, and
operating effectiveness of key controls
over patient admission, billing, discharge,
and revenue recording processes.

e Reviewing the contracts, billing terms

and testing a sample of revenue
transactions, including  review of
supporting documentation such as
patient files, discharge summaries, billing
records, and collections.

Noted that the Company implemented a
new accounting software during the
financial year 2080/81, effective from
2081/02/18. For the period from
2081/02/18 to 2081/03/31, we performed
sample-based testing by reconciling total
bills issued with income booked in the
ledger, daily cash collection reports and
deposits made into the bank.

For the period from 2080/04/01 to
2081/02/17, due to restricted access to
the previous accounting software on the
generation of comprehensive  bill
issuance report, we reviewed the
revenue recorded by analyzing cash
collection reports and bank statements
where the collections were deposited.

Additionally, selected days were sampled
from each month within this period and
related sales vouchers were physically
verified to confirm occurrence and
accuracy of revenue transactions.

Based on the work performed, we found
that revenue recognition was consistent .
with the hospital's stated accounting; - “/_ﬂ .
policies and applicable financial reporting ~'\ 3 e

standards.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Management is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management report, Report of the
Board of Directors and Chairman’s statement but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
Statements in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud and error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of(
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. ~

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern ba#s lof e
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertamp}“ -
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company":}\
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
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are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our examination, we would like to further report that:

Except for the effects described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion Paragraph, we have
obtained all the information and explanations, which were considered necessary for the
purpose for our audit.

Except for the effects described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion Paragraph, the Company
has kept proper books of accounts as required by law, in so far as it appears from our
examination of those books of account.

Except for the effects described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion Paragraph, The
Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss, the Statement of Change in
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows and attached Schedules dealt with by this report
are in agreement with the books of account maintained by the Company.

Except for the effects described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion Paragraph. During our
examination of the books of account of the Company, we have not come across the cases
where the Board of Directors or any member thereof or any representative or any office
holder or any employee of the Company has acted contrary to the provisions of law or
caused loss or damage to the Company and

We have not come across any fraudulence in the accounts, based on our sample
examination of the books.

For A.S.U.8 Associates.
Chartered Accountants_

RS ™
s “\‘-'w
v

Place: Lalitpur
Date: 8" September 2025
UDIN: 250916CA01117mggr4 Partner
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STAR HOSPITAL LIMITED
Statement of Financial Position as at 31st Ashad, 2081 (15th July, 2024)
NPR
Particulars Notes 31st Ashad, 2081 32nd Ashad, 2080
ASSETS '
A.  Non Current Assets
Property,plant and equipment 5 1,118,509,638 1,202,747,127
intangible assets 6 1,949,937 2,686,613
Investment in associates
Investment in subsidiaries 7 87,550,000 87,550,000 -
Deferred tax assets 8 46,874,229
Total Non Current Assets (A) 1,254,883,804 1,292,983,740
B.  Current Assets
Inventories S . 31,802,083 25,722,575
Account receivables 10 46,109,396 37,966,293
Advance, deposits and receivables 11 132,232,203 111,349,868
Cash and cash equivalents 12 14,808,201 3,954,322
Total Current Assets (B) 224,951,883 178,993,058
Total Assets (A+B) 1,479,835,687 1,471,976,798
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
A.  Equity
Share capital 13 683,672,200 683,672,200
Advance for share capital 170,836,700 57,715,800
Reserve and surplus 14 (479,923,761) {318,830,743)
Total Equity (A) 374,585,139 422,557,257
B.  Non Current Liabilities
Borrowing ' 15 744,173,308 605,514,488
Net defined benefit obligations 16 27,735,447 23,497,373
Deferred tax liability 8 - 6,254,879
Total Non Current Liabilities (B) 771,908,756 635,266,741
C.  Current Liabilities
Short term loan . 17 39,636,043 95,700,175
Account Payables 18 159,683,890 169,331,066
Other Payables and provisions 19 103,156,363 118,551,669
Employee Payable 20 30,865,497 30,569,891
Total Current Liabilities (C) 333,341,793 414,152,801
Total Equity & Liabilities (A+B+C) 1,479,835,687 1,471,976,798

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

SN
N 3% ,
Rajendra Shakya Santa Man Maharian a Lal Maharjan
Chairman Board Member Board Member Board Member
FCA Santosh Shrestha
A.S.U.S Associates
Dr. Shailesh Pradhan Er. Basanta Chandra Mafahatta Dr. Rajeev Shrestha
Board Member Board Member Board Member
oo s\ Qﬁv
Arun Lal Shrestha Chandra Maharja Bijay Panta Jatedn Shrestha
Board Member Board Member Board Member Sr. Finance Manager

Date: 2082.05.03
Place: Lalitour, Nepai
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STAR HOSPITAL LIMITED
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the Period from 1st Shrawan, 2080 to 31st Ashad, 2081 (17th July, 2023 to 15th July, 2024)
NPR
Particulars Notes For the Year Ended on For the Year Ended on
31st Ashad, 2081 31st Ashad, 2080
Revenue 21 340,819,126 425,164,028
Cost of sales 22 200,415,439 295,215,831
Gross profit / (loss) 140,403,687 129,948,197
Other income 23 14,634,885 10,172,877
Employee expense 24 125,406,609 151,302,043
Depreciation 5 65,089,622 69,815,873
Amortization 6 1,126,526 1,108,843
Administrative expenses 25 61,408,948 66,312,278
Impairment loss 5 3,595,641
Operating profit / (loss) (97,993,134) (152,013,603)
Finance costs 26 116,161,530 69,879,754
Profit / (loss) before staff bonus (214,154,664) (221,893,357)
Staff bonus - -
Profit / (loss) before tax (214,154,664) (221,893,357)
Income tax expenses of current year -
Income tax expenses of previous years -
Deferred tax-income (Expense) ) 8 53,129,108 15,832,025
Net profit / (loss) for the year (161,025,555) (206,061,332)
Other comprehensive income
(i) tems that will not be reclassified in statement of profit and losss . - -
Re-Measurement (Losses) / Gains on Post Employment Defined Benefi . .
Equity Instruments Through Other Comprehensive Income
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassifid to profit or
lass . - -
Total other comprehensive Income / (loss) for the year : - -
Total comprehensive income (161,025,555) (206,061,332)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. .
As per our report of even date

L -
w & / -
d \"‘ﬁ/ ) 1 : .
Rajendra Shakya Santa“Man Maharjan Tirtha Lal Maharjan é/ ‘
Chairman Board Member Board Member ... A .

FCA Santosh Shrestha
A.S.U.S Associates

Dr. Rajeev Shrestha
Board Member

¢ i
Bijay Panta ﬁt‘; Shrestha

Board Member Sr. Finance Manager

Dr. Shailesh Pradhan

Board Member Board Member

Arun Lal Shrestha
Board Member

Chandra Maharjan _
Board Member

Date: 2082.05.03
Place: Lalitpur, Nepal
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STAR HOSPITAL LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flow

For the Period from 1st Shrawan, 2080 to 31st Ashad, 2081 (17th July, 2023 to 15th July, 2024)

NPR

For the Year Ended on

Particul
articulars 31st Ashad, 2081

For the Year Ended on
31st Ashad, 2080

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit before Tax
Adjustments for:

(214,154,664)

(221,893,357)

Depreciation & Impairment expenses 66,216,148 74,520,356
Net finance cost 116,161,530 69,879,754
Provision for gratuity 4,791,749 16,021,655
Change in other non current assets - -
Change in inventories (6,079,508) 31,999,972
Change in Other Current Assets (20,882,335) (16,261,348)
Change in trade receivables (8,143,102) (3,962,481)
Change in other non current liabilities -
Change in short term loan (56,064,132) (82,987,794)
Change in employee benefit liabilities 295,606 21,917,687
Change in trade payables (9,647,176) (28,253,022)
Change in other current liabilities 11,657,419 43,882,181
Payment of gratuity (553,675) (525,299)
Income tax Paid -
Gain on cancellation of lease (4,341,209)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (1) {120,743,350) {95,661,695)
B. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Changes in Share Capital 113,120,900 44,051,650
Changes in Long Term Loan 138,658,820 143,319,816
Net finance cost (116,161,530) (69,879,754)
Dividend Paid - -
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (2) 135,618,190 117,491,712
C. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Sale/(Purchase) of Tangible Fixed Assets (3,631,111) (23,643,642)
Sale/(Purchase) of Intangible Assets (389,850) - .
Sale/(Purchase) of investments - (1,250,000)
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (3) (4,020,961) (24,893,642)
Net increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1+2+3) 10,853,879 (3,063,624)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of the year/period 3,954,322 7,017,946
Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of the year/period 14,808,201 3,954,322
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents 14,808,201 3,954,322
Cash in hand 1,232,020 1,155,103
Balance with Banks 13,576,180 2,799,219
As per our report of even date
-
1y
........................................... i e
Rajendra Shakya Santa Man Maharjan Tirfita Lal Maharjan
Chairman Board Member Board Member

Dr. Rajeev Shrestha

Dr. Shailesh Pradhan

e

Er. Basarfa Chandra Marahatta

Board Member Board Member Board Member
Arun Lal Shrestha Chandra Maharja Bijay Panta
Board Member Board Member Board Member

Date: 2082.05.03
Place: Lalitpur, Nepal
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FCA Santosh Shrestha
AS.U.S Associates

Jateen Shrestha
Sr. Finance Manager
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STAR HOSPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO ACCOUNT

6 Intangible Assets

Particulars Software
Cost
Balance at 15 July 2022 12,668,723
Additions -
Deletion -
Balance at 16 July 2023 12,668,723
Additions 389,850
Deletion -
Balance at 15 July 2024 13,058,573
Amortization
Balance at 15 July 2022 8,873,267
Amortization for the year 1,108,843
Disposal -
Balance at 16 July 2023 9,982,110
Amortization for the year 1,126,526
Disposal -
Balance at 16 July 2024 11,108,636
Carrying Amounts
As at 16 July 2023 2,686,613
As at 15 July 2024 1,949,937
7 Investment in Subsidiaries
Particulars 31st Ashad, 2081 31st Ashad, 2080
Modern Technical College 75,000,000 75,000,000
Star Academy Ltd. 10,050,000 10,050,000
Star Nuwakot Hospital 2,500,000 2,500,000
: Total 87,550,000 87,550,000
8 Deferred tax asset / (liability)
Particulars 31st Ashad, 2081 31st Ashad, 2080
Carrying Amounts
PPE (WDV) 711,147,741 770,881,151
Gratuity Provision (27,735,447) (15,496,355)
Land 408,027,000 408,027,000
Accumulated Loss -
ROU 1,284,834
Lease Liability (1,564,394)
Total Carrying Amount 1,091,159,734 1,163,411,797
Tax Base
PPE (WDV) 634,435,265 697,300,208
Gratuity Provision -
Land 154,509,295 154,509,295
Accumulated Loss 489,712,092 286,582,777
ROU -
Lease Liability -
Total Tax Base 1,278,656,651 1,138,392,280
Temporary Difference 187,496,917 (25,019,516)
Applicable Tax Rate 25% 25%
Closing Deferred Tax (Liability)/Assets 46,874,229 {6,254,879.06)
Opening Deferred Tax (Liability)/Assets (6,254,879) (22,086,904)
Deffered Tax (Expense)/income 53,129,108~ 15,832,025
~ )
)
\
<
<
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STAR HOSPITAL LIMITED

NOTES TO ACCOUNT
9 Inventories
Particulars 31st Ashad, 2081 31st Ashad, 2080
Star Hospital {A)
Consumable Stores 4,966,846 6,546,910
PCR Stock - -
Star Pharmacy (B)
Pharmacy-Sub Store 26,835,237 19,175,665
Total 31,802,083 25,722,575
10 Account receivables
Particulars 31st Ashad, 2081 31st Ashad, 2080
Star Hospital (A) .
Hospital Receivables 39,123,653 32,209,437
Star Pharmacy (B)
Pharmacy Receivables 6,985,743 5,756,856
Total 46,109,396 37,966,293
11 Advance, deposits and receivables
Particulars 31st Ashad, 2081 31st Ashad, 2080
Star Hospital (A)
Advance to MTC 77,077,700 58,477,338
Receivable from Star Academy - 1,433,556
Bank Guarantee Performance 30,000 30,000
LC margin 270,395 270,395
Advance to creditors 6,767,767 6,827,143
Advance tax 2,863,179 2,489,605
Deposits 1,323,656 2,035,250
Prepaid expenses 2,856,503 2,583,929
Other advance 909,436 776,053
Advance for Investment in Star Nuwakot 37,076,917 33,251,002
VAT receivable : 370,297 370,297
Innovative college of health Science Pvt Ltd 2,295,295 2,295,295
Star Pharmacy (B)
Advance to creditors 118,381 331,347
Deposit 94,018
Staff Advance 178,658 178,658
Loans and advance -
Total 132,232,203 111,349,868

<
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STAR HOSPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO ACCOUNT

12

13

Cash and cash equivalent

Particulars 31st Ashad, 2081 31st Ashad, 2080
Star Haspital (A)
Cash in hand 717,320 695,509
Balance with Banks 11,802,825 2,490,974
Star Pharmacy (B)
Cash in hand 296,751 258,757
Counter collection 27,112 10,000
Cheque in hand 190,837 190,837
Balance with Banks 1,773,355 308,245
Total 14,808,201 3,954,322
Balance with Banks

Particulars 31st Ashad, 2081 31st Ashad, 2080
Star Hospital (A)
Citizen Bank 104 (R) 97,820 97,820
Citizen Bank 38 (M) 10,807,590 65,302
Mahalaxmi Bikash Bank 76,915 76,915
NIC Asia Bank 553,513 -
Prabhu Bank Ltd 10,000 1,210,020
Rastriya Banijya Bank 10,171 267,107
Sanima Bank Limited 10,915 10,688
Progressive Finance LTD 235,900 763,122
Star Pharmacy (B)
Citizen Bank International Ltd 1,645,182 97,779
Nic Asia Bank 15,354 -
Rastriya Banijya Bank 112,818 210,466
Total 13,576,180 2,799,219
Share capital

Number of shares

Particulars 31st Ashad, 2081 31st Ashad, 2080
Authorized 10,000,000 10,000,000
Ordinary shares of NPR 100 each 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
tssued 9,000,000 9,000,000
Ordinary shares of NPR 100 each 900,000,000 900,000,000
Subscribed and fully paid up 683,672,200 683,672,200
Ordinary share of NPR 100 each 683,672,200 683,672,200
Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end
Particulars 31st Ashad, 2081 31st Ashad, 2080
Balance as at the opening date 683,672,200 683,672,200
Issue of Share Capital - -
Closinishare Capital 683,672,200 683,672,200
Advance for share capital 170,836,700 57,715,800
Balance as at the closing date 854,508,900 741,388,000

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with reg
to dividends and shares in the Company’s residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive
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STAR HOSPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO ACCOUNT

14

16

17

Reserve and Surplus

Particulars

31st Ashad, 2081

31st Ashad, 2080

Retained Earnings (670,062,040) (508,969,022)
Revaluation Reserve 190,138,279 190,138,279
Total (479,923,761) (318,830,743)
Net Defined Benefit Obligation
Particulars 31st Ashad, 2081 31st Ashad, 2080
Gratuity
Opening payable balance 23,497,373 8,001,018
Interest Cost - -
Current Service Cost 4,791,749 16,021,655
Less:Payment made 553,675 525,300
Closing payable balance 27,735,447 23,497,373
Leave encashment
Opening Balance
Interest cost
Current Service cost
Less:Payment made
Closing payable balance
Borrowing
Particulars 31st Ashad, 2081 31st Ashad, 2080
Overdraft Loan 9,892,798 30,034,413
Prabhu Bank Loan 91,185,000 91,250,000
Loan from shareholders 91,989,700 52,605,106
Citizen bank loan 579,061,538 486,015,696
Demand Loan 10,569,805 17,000,000
Bridge Gap Loan - 22,465,847
Vehicle Loan 1,110,511 1,843,601
Total 783,809,352 701,214,664
Long term loan {Non current) :
Particulars 31st Ashad, 2081 31st Ashad, 2080
Citizen bank loan 563,013,846 469,852,653
Prabhu Bank Loan 88,455,000 81,608,128
Loan from shareholders 91,989,700 52,605,106
Vehicle Loan 714,763 1,448,601
Total 744,173,308 605,514,488
Short term loan (Current)
Particulars 31st Ashad, 2081 31st Ashad, 2080
Overdraft Loan 9,892,798 30,034,413
Demand Loan 10,569,805 17,000,000
Bridge Gap Loan - 22,465,847
Citizen bank loan 16,047,692 16,163,043
Prabhu Bank Loan 2,730,000 9,641,872
Vehicle Loan 395,748 395,000
Total 39,636,043 95,700,175
~
{ 1 L
Pad
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STAR HOSPITAL LIMITED

18

19

20

NOTES TO ACCOUNT
Account Payables
Particulars 31st Ashad, 2081 31st Ashad, 2080
Star Hospital (A)
Sundry creditors 135,233,285 142,323,100
Star Pharmacy (B)
Sundry creditors 24,450,605 27,007,965
Total 159,683,890 169,331,066
Other payables and provisions
) Particulars 31st Ashad, 2081 31st Ashad, 2080
Star Hospital (A)
Patient deposit 4,984,330 4,358,957
Payable to star academy 2,016,419 -
Other payables 198,694 79,219
Ambulance Expenses Payable 34,500 34,500
Audit Fee Payable 649,285 939,535
Consultant Payable 54,497,651 40,078,619
Lease liability 1,564,394 30,563,429
staff welfare fund 16,750
TDS payables 27,644,904 37,977,333
Interest Payable 10,245,744 3,882,705
Star Pharmacy (B)
TDS on salary 86293 108,245
Patient deposits 919817 233,582
Other payables 145950 143,656
Advance from customer 151633 101,887
Total 103,156,363 118,501,668
Employee Payable
Particulars 31st Ashad, 2081 31st Ashad, 2080
Star Hospital
PF Payable 469,032 2,084,109
Cit Payables 300,660 722,000
Staff Payables 28,182,953 26,111,204
Star Pharmacy
Staff Payables 1683632 1,539,996
PF Payable 209220 112,583
CIT payable 20001 50,001
Total 30,865,497 30,619,892
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STAR HOSPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO ACCOUNT

21

22

23

Revenue

Particulars

For the Year Ended on For the Year Ended on

31st Ashad, 2081

31st Ashad, 2080

Star Hospital (A)
Hospital Sales

Star Pharmacy (B)

262,786,462

332,285,501

Pharmacy Sales 78,032,664 92,878,528
Total 340,819,126 425,164,028
Cost of Sales
Particulars For the Year Ended on For the Year Ended on
31st Ashad, 2081 31st Ashad, 2080
Star Hospital (A)
Opening Stock 6,546,910 33,920,400
Hospital Purchase and direct expenses 142,544,759 190,915,128
Less: Closing Stock 4,966,846 6,546,910
Sub- Total (A) 144,124,823 218,288,618
Star Pharmacy (B)
Opening Stock 19,175,665 23,802,148
Pharmacy Purchase and direct expenses 63,950,189 72,300,730
Less Closing Stock 26,835,237 19,175,665
Sub- Total (B) 56,290,616 76,927,213
Total {A+B) 200,415,439 295,215,831

Purchase and Direct Expense

For the Year Ended on For the Year Ended on

Particulars 31st Ashad, 2081 31st Ashad, 2080
Star Hospital (A) 142,544,759 190,915,128
Purchase 19,631,438 38,249,564

Direct Expenses
Consultant Fees

104,576,167

134,864,694

Dialysis expenses 2,891,704 -
Lab Test Expenses 2,774,467 1,338,559
Medicine Consumption 1,003,483 872,115
OT Consumable Expenses 694,412 649,667
Oxygen Gas 3,689,700 3,563,560
X-Ray Accessories 1,962,657 2,534,850
Service charge 5,320,731 8,842,119
Star Pharmacy (B) 63,950,189 72,300,730
Purchase 63,950,189 72,300,730
Total (A+B) 206,494,947 263,215,859
Other Income )
particulars For the Year Ended on For the Year Ended on
31st Ashad, 2081 31st Ashad, 2080
Star Hospital (A)
Rental Income 2,848,065 2,655,300
OJT Income 5,826,400 6,589,000
Interest income 15,782 19,908
Miscellaneous Income 5,944,638 736,339
Star Pharmacy (B)
Other Income - 192,985
Total 14,634,885 10,193,531
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STAR HOSPITAL LIMITED

NOTES TO ACCOUNT
24 Employee Expenses
particulars For the Year Ended on For the Year Ended on
31st Ashad, 2081 31st Ashad, 2080
Gratuity expenses 4,791,749 16,021,655
Outsource Staff Salary 12,752,313 17,451,812
P/F Contribution 2,967,407 3,477,612
Salary And Allowances 97,258,574 104,748,352
Staff Welfare 326,050 1,585,319
Pharmacy staff salary 7,310,516 8,017,294
Total 125,406,609 151,302,043
25 Administrative expenses
Particulars For the Year Ended on For the Year Ended on
31st Ashad, 2081 31st Ashad, 2080
Star Hospital (A)

Advertisement Expenses 570,138 1,376,912
AGM Expenses 324,550 760,300
AMC 1,580,023 847,500
Computer Accessories 547,427 364,264
Electricity Expenses 7,791,381 8,337,633
Fooding & Lodging Expenses 7,381,616 7,948,904
House Rent Expenses - 1,036,236
House Keeping Expenses 1,828,093 3,064,734
Insurance Expenses 2,980,829 4,583,749
Email and Internet 607,854 709,127
Office Expenses 4,839,406 1,562,141
Patient Management Charge 1,644,000 1,509,000
Printing & Stationery 2,471,661 3,087,168
Rating Expenses 379,332 -
Refreshment Expenses 494,305 1,210,397
Registration & Renewal Expenses 83,510 16,400
Security Expenses ’ 8,391,692 9,853,645
Telephone, Fax Expenses 528,200 659,105
Uniform (Hospital) 371,900 576,250
Wages 65,827 11,030
Water Expenses 104,035 49,045
Consultancy charge 2,075,211 2,495,413
Internal Audit fees 1,356,000 1,356,000
Cloths 55,480 -
Power and fuel 2,883,867 4,045,914
Other Expenses 7,884,733 1,592,921
Repair and Maintenance 2,252,405 5,226,395
Conference Expenditure - 533,472
Audit fee 226,000 226,000
Bank Charges 1,689,472 2,741,729
Meeting Allowances 385,400
Business promotion expenses 34,455
Commission 15,090
Training & Development 95,950
Total 61,408,948 66,312,278




STAR HOSPITAL LIMITED

NOTES TO ACCOUNT
Other expenses _
' particulars For the Year Ended on For the Year Ended on
31st Ashad, 2081 31st Ashad, 2080
Star Hospital (A) 7,833,230 1,592,921
Anniversary Day Expenses 44,415 89,499
Donation 130,000 140,000
Miscellanous Expenses 3,688,103 93,761
Parking Expenses 955 320
Penalty Fees 3,375,293
Transportation Expenses 3,150 33,330
Travelling And Daily Expenses 25,798 28,700
Vehicle Renewal Taxes 54,845
Penalty and other charge 391,421 1,098,401
Blood donation Expenses 119,250
Rates and Taxes - 108,155
Duties and tax - (746)
Health Camp And Site Expenses 1,500
Star Pharmacy (B) 51,503
Miscellanous Expenses 51,503
Total 7,884,733 1,592,921
26 Finance Expense
Particulars For the Year Ended on For the Year Ended on
31st Ashad, 2081 31st Ashad, 2080
Star Hospital (A) 116,161,530 69,899,662
Interest Expenses 114,694,502 66,676,262
Finance expenses on leased liability 1,467,028 3,223,400
Total 116,161,530 69,899,662,
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Star Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for FY 2080/81
All amount in Nepalese Rupees

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year ended 31%Asadh 2081

1. Reporting Entity

Star Hospital Limited {“The Company”) is limited liability company domiciled in Nepal registered under
Company Act, 2063. The address of its registered office is Ward No.2 Sanepa, Kathmandu, Nepal. The
company is registered as public limited company on 15"Baisakh 2067 with registration number
1232/066/067. The main aim for the establishment of the hospital is to provide quality health care
facilities for the people.

1.1Board of Directors

The composition of Board of Directors as on 31%Ashad 2081 is as follow:

Name . = . o |'Position T B
Kishor Kumar Maharjan Executive Chairman
Er. Basanta Chandra Marahatta Director

Arun Lal Shrestha Director

Chandra Maharjan Director

Tirtha Lal Maharjan Director

Santa Man Maharjan. Director

Bijay Panta Director

Kiran Maharjan Director

Dr. Rajeev Shrestha Independent Director
Dr. Sailesh Pradhan ‘ Independent Director

1.2Substantial Shareholders

Following are the shareholders of the hospital having shareholding exceeding 1% of the total paid up
capital as on 31st Ashad 2081:

I S.No. | Name of Shareholders =~ Value

i1 Subha Shree Holding Private Limited 57,505,000.00
2 Dr. Binita Pradhan 8,450,000.00
3 Tirtha Lal Maharjan 30,000,000.00
4 Ramesh Maharjan 10,000,000.00
5 Chandra Maharjan 33,706,000.00
6 Santa Man Maharjan 15,500,500.00
7 Kishore Kumar Maharjan 10,489,000.00

Total 165,650,500.00
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Star Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for FY 2080/81
All amount in Nepalese Rupees

2. Basis of Preparation

The company, while complying with the reporting standards, makes critical accounting judgment as
having potentially material impact on the financial statements. The significant accounting policies that
relate to the financial statements as a whole along with the judgments made are described herein.

Where an accounting policy is generally applicable to a specific item, the policy is described within that
relevant note. NFRS requires the company to exercise judgment in making accounting estimates. A
description of such estimates has been given in the relevant sections wherever they have been applied.

2.1Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements of Star Hospital Limited for the year ended 31%Asadh 2081, comprising
Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement
of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and Notes to the Financial Statements (including
Significant Accounting Policies), have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (hereafter referred as NFRS), laid down by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal and
in compliance with the requirements of all applicable laws and regulations.

2.2Reporting Periods and Approval of the Financial Statements

Reporting Period of the hospital falls between beginning of Shrawan to end of Ashad each year (Mid
July). Accompanied Financial Statements were approved by the company's Board of Directors on 18"
August, 2025. ’

2.3Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in functional and presentation currency of the Company i.e.
Nepalese Rupee (“NPR”) which is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Company operates. All amount has been rounded to the nearest rupee, except when otherwise
indicated.

2.4Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgments

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards requires
the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results
may differ due to these estimates. '

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods
affected.

¢ Page2 of 22




Star Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for FY 2080/81
All amount in Nepalese Rupees

The most significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have most significant effect in the Financial Statements are as follows:

Going Concern

The management have made an assessment of Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and
satisfied that it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the
management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may provide significant doubt upon
hospital’s ability to continue as a going concern and they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease
operations of it. Therefore, the Financial Statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial
position can be derived from active markets, they are derived from observable market data. However, if
this is not available, judgment is required to establish fair values.

Useful Life and Residual Value of the property

Management reviews the useful life and residual values of property, plant and equipment at least once
a year. Such life are dependent upon an assessment of both the technical life of the assets and also
their likely economic life, based on various internal and external factors including relative efficiency and
operating costs.

Useful life is:

(a) the period over which an asset is expected to be available for use by an entity; or

(b) the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the assets by an entity.
Accordingly, depreciable lives are reviewed annually using the best information available to the
Management.

Fair Value of Property, Plant and Equipment
The freehold land and buildings of the company are presented at cost. Since the property, plant and

equipment are not reflected at fair value, no revaluation has been carried at the reporting date.

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant
and equipment to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. Value in use is usually determined on the basis of discounted
estimated future cash flows. This involves management estimates on anticipated commodity prices,
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Notes to the financial statements for FY 2080/81
All amount in Nepalese Rupees

25

2.6

Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in the above-mentioned factors could impact the
carrying value of assets.

Commitments and Contingencies

All discernible risks are accounted for in determining the amount of all known liabilities. Contingent
liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future events or
present obligations where the transfer of economic benefit is not probable or cannot be reliably
measured. Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the Statement of Financial Position but are
disclosed unless they are remote.

Taxation

The company is subject to income tax and judgment is required to determine the total provision for
current, deferred and other taxes due to the uncertainties that exist with respect to the interpretation
of the applicable tax laws, at the time of preparation of these Financial Statements. Deferred tax assets
are recognized in respect of tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilized. Judgment is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits, together with future tax planning strategies.

Classification of Investment Properties

Management requires using its judgment to determine whether a property qualifies as an investment
property. The Company has developed criteria so it can exercise its judgment consistently. A property
that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both and which generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by the Company is accounted for as investment properties. On
the other hand, a property that is used for operations or in the process of providing services or for
administrative purposes and which do not directly generate cash flows as a standalone-assets are
accounted for as property, plant and equipment. The Company assesses on an annual basis the
accounting classification of its properties taking into consideration the current use of such properties.

Discounting

When the realization of assets and settlement of obligation is for more than one year, the Company
considers the discounting of such assets and liabilities where the impact is material. Various internal and
external factors have been considered for determining the discount rate to be applied to the cash flows
of company.

Materiality and Aggregation

In compliance with Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 01 (Presentation of Financial Statements), each
material class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements. items of dissimilar
nature or functions too are presented separately unless they are immaterial. Financial Assets and
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Star Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for FY 2080/81
All amount in Nepalese Rupees

Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position only
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expenses
are not offset in the Statement of Profit or Loss unless required or permitted by an Accounting Standard.

2.7 Comparative Information

The Financial Statement of the company provides comparative information in respect of previous
periods. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by Company with those of the previous
financial year in accordance with NAS 01 Presentation of Financial Statements, except those which had
to be changed as a result of application of the new NFRS or expiry of the carve out period. Further,
comparative information is reclassified wherever necessary to comply with the current presentation.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
Financial Statements, and deviations if any have been disclosed accordingly.

3.1Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements of Company have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the

following material items in the Statement of Financial Position:

= Available for sale investments (quoted) are measured at fair value.

= Liabilities for defined benefit obligations are recognized at the present value of the defined benefit
obligation less the fair value of the plan assets.

*  Financial assets and financial liabilities held at amortized cost.

3.2Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition i

Property, plant and equipment are tangible items that are held for use in the production or supply of
services, for rental to others or for administrative purposes and are expected to be used during more
than one period. The Company applies the requirements of the Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 16
(Property, Plant and Equipment) in accounting for these assets. Property, plant and equipment are
recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the entity
and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably measured.

The freehold land and buildings of the company are measured at cost and not reflected at fair value and
no revaluation has been carried at the reporting date.

Measurement

An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies for recognition as an asset is initially measured
at its cost. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and cost
incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of an item of property, plant & equipment. The cost of self-
constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use and the costs of dismantling and removing

£y
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the items and restoring the site on which they are located. When parts of an item of property or
equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of
property, plant and equipment.

Cost Model

Property and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day-to—day servicing, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the
equipment when that cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria are met.

Revaluation model
The company has not applied the revaluation model to the any class of freehold land and buildings or
other assets.

Subsequent Cost

The subsequent cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized
in the carrying amount of the item, if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within
that part will flow to the Company and it can be reliably measured. The cost of day to day servicing of
property, plant and equipment are charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred.

De-recognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use. The gain or loss arising from de-recognition of an
item of property, plant and equipment is included in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the item is
derecognized. ’

When replacement costs are recognized in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and
equipment, the remaining carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. Major inspection costs
are capitalized. At each such capitalization, the remaining carrying amount of the previous cost of
inspections is derecognized. The gain or losses arising from de-recognition of an item of property, plant
and equipment is included in profit or loss when the item is derecognized.

Depreciation

Land is not depreciated. All other property, plant and equipment are depreciated from the date they are
available for use or in respect of selfconstructed assets, from the date that the construction is completed
and ready for use. Depreciation is charged on straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the
property, plant and equipment. The useful life of the assets and the corresponding rates at which the
assets are depreciated are as follows:

S.N Category of Assets Useful Life
1 Buildings 30 Years

2 Vehicles 7 years

3 Office Equipment 6 Years

4 Furniture & Fixtures 6 Years

5 Plant and Equipments 5- 10 Years

N Page 6 0f 22~
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Star Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for FY 2080/81
All amount in Nepalese Rupees

ﬁi [ Computers & Printers | 6 Years ]

Changes in Estimates

Useful life is either the period of time which the asset is expected to be used or the number of
production or similar units expected to be obtained from the use of asset. The estimated useful life,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Hospital Assets are depreciated over the period of license term using reducing balance method of
depreciation.

Capital Work in Progress

These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major plant and
machinery and system development, awaiting capitalization. Capital work-in-progress would be
transferred to the relevant asset when it is available for use, i.e. when it is in the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Capital work-in-
progress is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as
part of the cost of an asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

3.3Intangible Assets

Recognition

An intangible asset is an |dent1flable non-monetary asset without physical substance, held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, for rental to others or for administrative purposes. An
intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to
the asset will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. An intangible asset is
initially measured at cost. Intangible assets of the company consist of the accounting software purchased
by the hospital.

Subsequent Expenditure

Expenditure incurred on software is capitalized only when it is probable that this expenditure will enable
the asset to generate future economic benefits in excess of its originally assessed standard of
performance and this expenditure can be measured and attributed to the asset reliably. All other
expenditure is expensed as incurred.
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Amortization of Intangible Assets

intangible Assets, except for goodwill, are amortized on a straight-line basis in the Statement of Profit or .
Loss from the date when the asset is available for use, over the best of its useful economic life based on

a pattern in which the asset’s economic benefits are consumed by the company. Amortization methods,
useful lives, residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if appropriate. The
company assumes that there is no residual value for its intangible assets.

Assets Category Useful Life

Computer Software 5 years

De-recognition of Intangible Assets

The carrying amount of an item of intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use. The gain or loss arising on de recognition of an item of
intangible assets is included in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the item is derecognized.

3.4Impairment of Tangible & Intangible Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest Company of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognized immediately in Statement of Profit or loss & Other Comprehensive
Income.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognized for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized immediately in Statement of Profit or loss & Other Comprehensive Income.
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Notes to the financial statements for FY 2080/81
All amount in Nepalese Rupees

3.5Financial Instruments

3.5.1

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contract embodying the related financial instruments. All financial assets, financial liabilities and
financial guarantee contracts are initially measured at transaction cost and where such values are
different from the fair value, at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through Statement of Profit or loss & Other Comprehensive Income) are added to
or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through Statement of Profit or loss & Other Comprehensive Income are immediately recognized in
the Statement of Profit or loss & Other Comprehensive Income.

In case of interest free or concession loans/debentures/preference shares given to subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, the excess of the actual amount of the loan over initial measure at fair
value is accounted as an equity investment. Investment in equity instruments issued by subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures are measured at cost. less impairment. Investment in preference
shares/debentures of the subsidiaries are treated as equity instruments if the same are convertible into
equity shares or are redeemable out of the proceeds of equity instruments issued for the purpose of
redemption of such investments. Investment in preference shares/ debentures not meeting the
aforesaid conditions is classified as debt instruments at amortized cost.

Financial Assets Classification

Company classifies its financial assets based on its business model whose objective is to hold assets in
order to collect the contractual cash flow characteristics, as follows:

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost if these financial assets are held
within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these
financial assets are held within a business mode!l whose objective is to hold these assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI include equity and debt securities. Equity
Investments classified as ‘Financial assets at fair value through OCI’ are those which are
neither classified as ‘Held for Trading’ nor ‘Designated at fair value through profit or loss’. Debt
securities in this category are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and may be
sold in response to need for liquidity or in response to changes in the market conditions.

(NI
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Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
A financial asset is classified as fair value through profit or loss if it is held for trading or is
designated at fair value through profit or loss.

3.5.2 Financial Liabilities Classification

At the inception, company determines the classification of its financial liabilities. Accordingly, financia!
liabilities are classified as:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
e Financial liabilities held for trading.
e Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

3.5.3 Measurement

Initial Measurement

All financial instruments are measured initially at their fair value plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to acquisition or issue of such financial instruments except in the case of
such financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, as per the Nepal
Accounting Standard - NAS 39 (Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement).
Transaction cost in relation to financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are dealt with the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Subsequent Measurement

A financial assets or financial liability is subsequently measured either at fair value or at
amortized cost based on the classification of financial assets or liability. Financial asset or
liability classified as amortized cost is subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method.

The amortized cost of the financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial assets
or financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or
minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference
between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction for
impairment or un-collectability.

Financial assets classified at fair value are subsequently measured at fair value. The
subsequent changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
recognized in statement of profit or loss whereas of financial assets at fair value thorough
comprehensive income are recognized in other comprehensive income.

3.5.4 Derecognition - Financial Assets

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flow from the
financial assets expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
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transaction in which substantially all of the risk and rewards of the ownership of the financial
assets are transferred or in which the company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of
the risk and rewards of the ownership and it does not retain control of the financial assets.

On de-recognition of a financial assets, the difference between the carrying amount of the assets
(or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the assets derecognized) and the sum of (i)
the consideration received (including any new assets obtained less any new liability assumed)
and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in OClI is recognized in income or
expenditure. Any interest in transferred financial assets that qualify for de-recognition that is
created or retained by the company is recognized as a separate assets or liability.

3.5.5 Derecognition - Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
canceled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original
financial liability and the consideration paid is recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

3.5.6 Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Statement
of Financial Position when and only when Company has a legal right to set off the recognized
amounts and it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under
NFRSs or for gains and losses arising from a group of similar transaction such as in trading
activity.

3.5.7 Fair Value Measurement

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit
price) in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:
In the principal market for the asset or liability or

e Inthe absence of principal market, in the most advantageous market for asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Valuation technique using quoted market price: financial instruments with quoted
prices for identical instruments in active markets.
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Level 2 - Valuation technique using observable inputs: financial instruments with quoted prices
for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in
inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models where all significant inputs are
observable.

Level 3 - Valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs: financial instruments
valued using valuation techniques where one or more significant inputs are unobservable.

When available, the company measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in an
active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available and represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm'’s
length basis. If a market for a financial instrument is not active, the company establishes fair value
using a valuation technique. Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length transactions
between knowledgeable, willing parties (if available), reference to the current fair value of other
instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analyses.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the transaction
price — i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. However, in some cases, the fair
value of a financial instrument on initial recognition may be different to its transaction price. If such
fair "value is evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions in the
same instrument (without modification) or based on a valuation technique whose variables include
only data from observable markets, then the difference is recognized in profit or loss on initial
recognition of the instrument. In other cases, the difference is not recognized in profit or loss
immediately but is recognized over the life of the instrument on an appropriate basis or when the
instrument is redeemed, transferred, or sold, or the fair value becomes observable.

All unguoted equity investments are recorded at cost, considering the non-trading of promoter
shares up to the date of balance sheet, the market price of such shares could not be ascertained
with certainty. Hence, these investments are recognized at cost net of impairment, if any.

3.5.8 Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, company assesses whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss is impaired. A
financial asset or group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if and only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events, that have occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset {an ‘incurred loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. .

Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognized for financial assets measured at amortized
cost and fair value through the statement of profit or loss.

The company recognizes impairment loss on trade receivables using expected credit loss model. For
financial assets whose credit risk has not significantly increased since initial recognition, loss
allowance equal to twelve months expected credit losses is recognized. Loss allowance equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses is recognized if the credit risk on the financial instruments has
significantly increased since initial recognition.
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3.6Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position comprise cash at company and on
hand and demand deposits with an original maturity of three months or less and highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value net of outstanding company overdrafts as they are considered
an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

3.7Investment Property

Investment property is property (land or a building or part of a building or both) held (by the owner or
by the lessee under a finance lease) to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both but not for sale in
the ordinary course of business.

Measurement

Investment property is accounted for under Fair Value in the Financial Statements. In the absence of
information related to market price of the properties, the amount outstanding at the time of settlement
of loan has been considered as the fair value of the asset.

De-recognition

Investment properties are derecognized when they are disposed of or permanently withdrawn from use
since no future economic benefits are expected. Transfers are made to and from investment property
only when there is a change in use. When the use of a property changes such that it is reclassified as
Property, Plant and Equipment, its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for
subsequent accounting.

3.8Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as
part of the cost of the asset until such time as the assets are substantially ready for the intended use or
sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

3.9Inventories

Cost of inventories includes cost of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Inventories of stores, spare parts and loose tools are
stated at the lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories in the ordinary course of business less all estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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3.10 Income Tax

Income Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. It is recognized in Profit or loss except to the
extent that relate to items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income (OCI).

3.10.1Current Tax

Current tax comprises of expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment to the payable or receivable in respect to previous years. Current tax is measured
using tax rate enacted or subsequently enacted at the reporting date.

3.10.2Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary difference between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the tax base of these assets and liabilities as per the legislation.
Deferred tax is measured using tax rate enacted or subsequently enacted at the reporting date.

3.11 Provision and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain.

The expense relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit or loss & Other
Comprehensive Income net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific
to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognized as a finance cost.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the entity.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation.. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured
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reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the
standalone financial statements.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the
Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the
contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating
the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established,
the Company recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each reporting period.
3.12 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to Company
and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met
before revenue is recognized.

Dividend and Interest Income

Dividend income (net of withholding taxes) from investments is recognized when the shareholder’s right
to receive payment has been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably).In case of stock dividend only
the number of shares is increased.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow tothe Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on
a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Other Income

Other income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Other income is accrued on a
time basis

3.13 Interest Expenses
Interest Expenses has been recognized on accrual basis based on the coupon rate for loan.

3.14 Staff Bonu's

Provision for a staff bonus is made as per the prevalent practices at ten percent of accounting net profit
including such bonuses. As the company is at a loss, no amount has been provided for a staff bonus.
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3.15 Employee Benefits

Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment plan under which an entity pays a fixed contribution
into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an employee benefit
expense in the statement of profit or loss in the periods during which services are rendered by
employees. Employees are eligible for Employees’ Provident Fund Contributions in accordance with the
respective statutes and regulations.Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an
expense in the statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Defined benefit plan

The new Labor Act 2074 is applicable from Bhadra 19, 2074 which requires payment of minimum
Gratuity of at least 8.33% of basic salary to all staff (equal to one month salary per year). The company
has not yet decided for the revision of its employees’ policies as per New Labor Act. As the act is already
in force, the company has decided to provide gratuity to old staff who are in service now on the basis of
existing policy of the company till Ashad End, 2081. The company hasn’t done actuarial valuation till
date.

Employees' provident fund

The company contribute 10% of the salary of each employee to the Employees’ Provident Fund managed
by government of Nepal. Regular monthly contributions are made to provident fund and are deposited
with the Employees’ Provident Fund (Organization), which are charged to revenue.

3.16 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease or it contains a lease, is based on the substance
of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Finance Lease

Agreements which transfer to counterparties substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the
ownership of assets, but not necessarily legal title, are classified as finance lease. When Company is the
lessor under finance lease, the amounts due under the leases, after deduction of unearned interest
income, are included in, ‘Loans& receivables from other customers’, as appropriate. Interest income
receivable is recognized in ‘Net interest income’ over the periods of the leases so as to give a constant
rate of return on the net investment in the leases. When Company is a lessee under finance leases, the
leased assets are capitalized and included in ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ and the corresponding
liability to the lessor is included in ‘Other liabilities’. A finance lease and its corresponding liability are
recognized initially at the fair value of the asset or if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
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payments. Finance charges payable are recognized in ‘Interest expenses’ over the period of the lease
based on the interest rate implicit in the lease so as to give a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability.

Operating Lease

All other leases are classified as operating leases. When acting as lessor, Company includes the assets .
subject to operating leases in ‘Property, plant and equipment’ and accounts for them accordingly.
Impairment losses are recognized to the extent that residual values are not fully recoverable and the
carrying value of the assets is thereby impaired. Lease payments under an operating lease are
recognized as an expense as per NFRS 16 under Depreciation charge on right of use of assets and
interest expense on lease liability basis over the lease term.

-3.17 Foreign Currency Transaction

The functional currency of the Company is determined on the basis of the primary economic
environment in which it operates. The functional currency of the Company is Nepalese Rupee (NPR).

In preparing the financial statements, the transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognized in Statement of Profit or loss & Other
Comprehensive Income in the period in which they arise.

3.18 Share Capital and Reserves

Share capital and reserves are different classes of equity claims. Equity claims are claims on the residual
interest in the assets of the entity after deducting all its liabilities. Changes in equity during the reporting
period comprise income and expenses recognized in the statement of financial performance; plus
contributions from holders of equity claims, minus distributions to holders of equity claims.

3.19 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the year by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares
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outstanding during the year is adjusted for treasury shares, bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue
to existing shareholders, share split and reverse share split {consolidation of shares).

e Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the year as adjusted for dividend,
interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive
potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on
the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive
only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing
ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of
the period, unless they have been issued at a later date.

4. Risk Management Framework

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework. The Company’s risk management policies are established to
identify and analyses the risks faced by the Company to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to
monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in market conditions and Company’s activities. The Company aims to maintain a
disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations.

The Board of Directors oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in
relation to the risks faced by the Company.

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s
receivables from customers. The management does not believe that the Company has any exposure to
credit risk.

Market risk management

Market risk is the risk that changes in market price, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimizing the return. The Company currently has no transactions which expose it
primarily to the financial risks of changes in interest rates, equity prices etc.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated
with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that will always have sufficient liquidity to
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meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

4.1Capital Management

The company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximizing the returns to stakeholders. Currently, the company is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements.

The Company’s management reviews the capital structure of the Company on a regular basis. As part of
this review, the management considers the cost of capital and the risk associated with the capital.

4.2Segment Reporting

The Company is engaged in providing quality medical facilities to patients. The executive committee of the
Company (being the chief operating decision maker) assesses performance and allocates resources for the
business of the Company as a whole and hence the management considers company’s business activities
as a single operating segment and no segment disclosures have been made in these financial statements.

4.3Provisions and contingent liabilities

a. Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive as a result of .
as past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made the amount of the obligation. .

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received, and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

b. A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that
may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be
estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions but are disclosed unless the possibility of
outflow of resources is remote. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial
statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of
economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognized in the period in which the change
occurs,

c. There are no reportable contingent liabilities or commitments as at the year end.

4.4Disaster Management

A disaster is a sudden, calamitous event that seriously disrupts the functioning of a community or society
and causes human, material, and economic or environmental losses that exceed the community’s or
society’s ability to cope using its own resources. Disaster occur when a hazard impact on vulnerable
people. Disasters are older than mankind. We can't control the hazard like earthquake, flood, fire, and
landslide and so on but we can minimize the damage which may cause by such hazards. Preparedness is
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the key point for minimizing the loss or damage which may occur due to the disasters. As we know hazard
are older than the mankind so there is some trend in occurrence of such events like flood, earthquake so
we have to predict and be prepared for these kinds of Hazard. Disasters is the product of process and
exposure though the process or hazard are natural so we cannot exactly identify it but by listing possible
hazard like flood, iandslide and fire and so on which may occurred we can only reduce the damage by
reducing such thing on exposure of Disaster.

4.5Events after the reporting period

The company monitors and assesses events that may have potential impact to qualify as adjusting and/ or
non-adjusting events after the end of the reporting period. All adjusting events are adjusted in the book
with additional disclosures and non-adjusting material events are disclosed in the notes.

4.6Related Party and Transaction with the Related Party

Disclosure has been made in respect of the transactions in which one party has the ability to control or
exercise significant influence over the financial and operating policies / decisions of the other, irrespective of
whether a price is charged.

The company identifies the following as the related parties under the requirements of NAS 24,
The member of board of directors
The key management personnel of the entity.
The Subsidiary of the entity and its board of directors and key management personnel

The close member of the family of any individual referred to in (a) or (c) or entity in which the close
member holds interest in..

Board meeting allowance for Chairman is Rs. 6,000 and other members are Rs. 5,000.

Following related party transaction have been observed:

Kishore Kumar . 5,670,000
1. Maharjan Chairman Salary Expenses
5. br. Sandesh GC Chief Operating Officer | Salary Expenses 3,163,200
{CO0)
3. Pravin Kumar Tegi Chief Adm‘lmstratlon Salary Expenses 2,894,800
Officer
4. Star Academy Subsidiary Company OJT Income 5,760,000
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Balances from related party have been observed as follows:

. '
1. Kishor Kumar | o i an Loan 28,350,000 Cr 20%
Mabharjan Taken
Chief Operating | Loan 20% 932,721.43
2. Dr. Sandesh GC Officer (COO) Taken 3,250,000 Cr
Pravin Kumar Chief Loan
3. Tegi Adr_mmstratlon Taken 2,250,000 Cr 20% 732,721.59
Officer
4. Tithalal = pyector Loan 4,000,000 Cr 20% 876,438.39
Maharjan Taken
5. Arunlal - pirector Loan 12,350,000 Cr 20% 2,208,794.52
Shrestha Taken
Shanta Man
6. M;h]al:‘?':]a"d Director $°:“ 1,082,700 Cr 20%
attrishna ‘ axen 425,087.95
Maharjan
Laxman Son of Chandra Loan
7. Maharjan M?harjan Taken 7,000,000 Cr 20% 1,399,999.99
(Director) i
8. Kiran Maharjan | pirector Loan 4,600,000 Cr 20% 738,410.95
Taken
Chandra
: Loan 4,500,000 Cr 209
3. Mahajan Director Taken ' 0% 689,041.09
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. Star Subsidiary | 1433556 5673600 | 9123575 | 2,016,419 Cr
. Academy Company Yy
Advance . 77,077,700
Subsidiary : 69116572.19 | 7961128 0 e
2. to MTC Company Receivable Dr
Advance .
L 39,576,910
3 to Star Subsidiary Receivable 35750995 3825915 0 or
Nuwakot Company
| ti 1 ,
A MMOVEIVE | Subsidiary | o o | 2295295 0 0 |22952950r |
: College Company s

FCA Santosh Shrestha

Rajendra Shakya Santa Man Maharjan

Chairman Board Member A.S.U.S Associates

. Er. Basanta Chandra Bijay Panta
) . Dr. Shailesh Pradhan
Tirtha Lal Maharjan Marahatta Board Member
Board Member Board Member

Board Member

(st Ao

Arun Lal Shrestha

Jateen Shrestha Chandra Maharjan

Dr. Rajeev Shrestha

Board Member Board Member

Board Member

Sr. Finance Manager

Date: 2082.05.03
Place: Lalitpur, Nepal
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Kalikasthan-29 Kathmandu @

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of
M/S Star Hospital Ltd.

: On the Financial Statements.
Qualified Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/S Star Hospital Ltd., Sanepa, Lalitpur
~ Which comprises the Statement of financial position as at. Ashad 32,2082, (July 16. 2025) Statement of Income. the
Statement of Change in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended on that date. and a summary
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the effect of
the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report. the accompanying financial statements
presents fairly. in all materials respects. the financial position of the company, as the Ashad 32,2082 (July 16, 2025)
and its financial performance, change in equity, cash flows for the year then ended. and a Summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information, in accordance with Nepal Accounting Stardards for Micro
Entities (NAS for MEs) and comply with Company Act.2063, and other prevailing laws.

Basis for Qualified opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the Handbook of The Codes of the Ethics for
Professional Accountants issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN). and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with ICAN’s Handbook of The Codes of the Ethics for Professional
Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion on the financial statements.

1. As disclosed in the accompanying financial statements, the Hospital has recorded purchases amounting to Rs.
10,54,78.777 relating to the hospital operations and Rs. 4.58,93,711 relating to the pharmacy operations during
the year ended Ashadh end 2082. Further, the closing inventory as at the year end has been reported at Rs.
46.83.253 for the hospital and Rs. 1,04,28.619 for the pharmacy.

During the course of our audit, we were unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the
proper flow of inventory, including receipts, issues, consumption. and transfers between hospital and pharmacy.
as well as the correctness of the status, valuation. and existence of such inventories as at Ashadh end 2082. The
" inventory records, supporting documentation, and reconciliation mechanisms were not adequate to enable us to
verify whether the purchases recorded during the year were appropriately reflected in consumption or closing
stock. nor to confirm the accuracy of the closing inventory balances.
Accordingly, we were unable to determine whether any adjustments might have been necessary in respect of
purchases. cost of services. inventories. profit for the year, and the related assets and equity balances as at Ashadh
end 2082.

2. As disclosed in the accompanying financial statements, the Hospital has charged an amount of Rs. 28,39,999.48
to insurance expenses during the year, which relates to prepaid insurance recognized in the previous financial
year. During the course of our audit. we were unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding
the basis of calculation. period of allocation. and supporting documents justifying the recognition of such prepaid
insurance as an expense during the year.

In the absence of adequate documentation and proper computation. we were unable to ascertain whether the
insurance expense for the year has been correctly recognized and whether any adjustments were required in respect
of insurance expenses. prepaid expenses. profit for the year. and the related assets and equity balances.
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3. As disclosed in the accompanying financial statements. the Company has reported a loan from a director
amounting to Rs. 12.33.23.100 as at Ashadh end 2082. During the year. the Company has also recognized interest
expense amounting to Rs. 12.33.23.100 in respect of such loan. The interest charged on the said loan is at a rate
that is significantly higher than the prevailing normal market interest rate.

4. As at the reporting date, certain inter-company receivable and payable balances did not tally with the
corresponding balances as per the records of the respective group companies. The differences mainly arise due to
timing differences, unrecorded inter-company transactions. and reconciliation differences pending confirmation.

Following are the details of such balances:

Particulars As per Star Hospital | As per Counter Party
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Innovative College of Health Science 23,352.829.00 (Dr.) 21.62,295.00 (Cr.)
Star Academy Lalitpur 1.td. 83.55.919.00 (Cr.) 51,44,360.00 (Dr.)

Key Audit Matters:

Key audit matters arc those matters that in our professional judgement. were of most significance in the audit of the
financial statement and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to
fraud) identified. including those which had the greatest effect on the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources
in the audit: and directing the efforts of the engagement tecam.

Key Audit Matters

Auditor’s Response

Impairment of Abandoned Software:

As disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, the
Company recognized an impairment loss of Rs.
14,55.389 during the yecar on software that has been
abandoned and is no longer in use. The assessment of
impairment involved significant management judgment
in determining whether the software had any recoverable
value, the timing of abandonment. and whether the
carrying amount should be written down in full.

Given the judgment involved and the material impact of
the impairment charge on the profit for the year. this
matter was considered to be a key audit matter.

3

Our audit procedures included, among others:

Obtaining an understanding of management’s process
for identifying indicators of impairment and
abandonment of intangible assets;

Reviewing management’s assessment and approval for
the abandonment of the software;

Evaluating whether the software was no longer in use
and whether any future economic benefits were
expected to be derived therefrom;

Verifying the carrying amount of the software prior to
impairment with the underlying accounting records:
Assessing the appropriateness of recognizing the
impairment loss in accordance with applicable
financial reporting standards; and

Evaluating the adequacy of related disclosures made in
the financial statements.

Revaluation of Land:

As disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, the
Company revalued its land during the year, resulting in
an increase in carrying amount from Rs. 40,80.27.000 to
Rs. 66.92,13,000. The revaluation involved significant
Jjudgment and estimation, including the determination of
fair value, selection of valuation techniques, key
assumptions applied by the valuer. and the
appropriateness of recognizing the resulting revaluation
surplus in equity. .

Our audit procedures included, among others:

Evaluating management’s process and controls over the
revaluation of land:

Assessing the competence, capabilities. and
independence of the external valuer engaged by the
Company;

Reviewing the valuation report and understanding the
valuation methodology adopted and key assumptions
used:
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e Comparing key assumptions with market data and

Given the materiality of the land balance, the significant observable inputs, where applicable:

increase in value arising from revaluation, and the e Verifying the mathematical accuracy of the valuation
judgment involved in determining fair value. this matter and reconciliation with accounting records;

was considered to be a key audit matter. »  Assessing whether the revaluation has been accounted

for in accordance with applicable financial reporting
standards: and

+  Evaluating the adequacy and appropriateness of related
disclosures in the financial statements.

Information Other than Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Management is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management report. Report of the Board of Directors and Chairman’s
statement but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so. consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information.
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

* As per section 100 of Labor Act. 2074, Each enterprise shall make a labor audit as prescribed as to whether or not
acts and actions are being performed by the enterprise in accordance with this Act, Regulation and prevailing law
and prepare a report thereof. Also. as per Labor Rule, 2075 The enterprise may, in accordance with this Act and
these Rules, cause a labor audit to be conducted every year within the end of the month of Poush. in respect of its
enterprise. as per the standards prescribed by the Ministry, through a worker of its own managerial level or any
other individual or institution related to the labor sector. The hospital has not conducted such Labor Audit.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial Statements in accordance with
Nepal Accounting Standards. and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation financial statements that are free from error material misstatement, whether due to fraud and error.

In the preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for accessing the Company s ability to continue
as a going concern. disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations. or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial Statements.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
NSAs will always detect a mategial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
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Star Hospital Limited
Sanepa, Lalitpur

Statement of Financial Position
As at 32nd Ashad, 2082 (16th July, 2025)

Figuresin NPR
Particulars Notes  32nd Ashad, 2082 31st Ashad, 2081
ASSETS
A. Non Current Assets
Property,Plant and Equipment 5 1,31,92,04,558 1,11,85,09,638
Intangible Assets 6 9,25,682 19,49,937
Investment in Associates
Investment in Subsidiaries 7 8,75,50,000 8,75,50,000
Deferred Tax Assets 8 4,69,71,245 4,68,74,229
Total Non Current Assets (A) 1,45,46,51,485 1,25,48,83,804
B. Current Assets
Inventories 9 1,51,11,872 3,18,02,083
Account Receivables 10 6,78,17,039 4,61,09,396
Advance, Deposits and Receivables 11 15,47,00,976 13,22,32,203
Cash and Cash Equivalents 12 29,66,072 1,48,08,201
Total Current Assets (B) 24,05,95,960 22,49,51,883
Total Assets (A+B) 1,69,52,47,446 1,47,98,35,687
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
A. Equity :
Share Capital 13 84,55,58,000 68,36,72,200
Advance for Share Capital 89,37,830 © 17,08,36,700
Reserve and Surplus 14 (40,73,80,929) (47,99,23,761)
Total Equity (A) 44,71,14,901 37,45,85,139
B. Non Current Liabilities
Borrowing 15 72,90,60,305 74,41,73,308
Net Defined Benefit Obligations 16 2,38,13,747 2,77,35,447
Deferred Tax Liability 8 - -
Total Non Current Liabilities (B) 75,28,74,052 77,19,08,755
C. Current Liabilities
Short Term Loan 17 11,92,31,890 3,96,36,043
Account Payables 18 16,17,78,265 15,96,83,890
Other Payables and Provisions 19 15,41,57,838 10,31,56,363
Employee Payable 20 6,00,90,498 3,08,65,497
Total Current Liabilities (C) 49,52,58,492 33,33,41,793
Total Equity & Liabilities (A+B+C) 1,69,52,47,446 1,47,98,35,687

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As perour report of even date attached

Chandra Maharjan
Board Membel

Arun Lal Shrestha

Tirthh Lal Maharjan
Board Member

Board Member

\

Santa Man Maharjan
Board Member

Bijay Kumar Pant
Board Member

Board/lember

XN

Dr. Shailesh Pradhan Yog Raj'Sharma Kandel
Board Member CEO

ajeen Shrestha
Sr. Finance Manager

Date: 13 Poush, 2082 ‘A l[ ST AR

Place: Kathmandu
HOSPITAL
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Star Hospital Limited
Sanepa, Lalitpur
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the Period from 1st Shrawan, 2081 to 32nd Ashad, 2082 (16th July, 2024 to 16th July, 2025)

Figuresin NPR

Particulars Notes Forthe Year Ended on Forthe Year Ended on

32nd Ashad, 2082 31st Ashad, 2081

Revenue 21 28,08,16,838 34,08,19,126
Cost of Sales 22 16,80,62,699 19,50,94,708
Gross Profit / (Loss) 11,27,54,140 14,57,24,417
Other Income 23 1,07,21,735 1,46,34,885
Employee Expense 24 12,13,88,755 12,54,06,609
Depreciation 5 6,35,24,355 6,50,89,622
Amortization 6 2,13,479 11,26,526
Administrative Expenses 25 5,01,93,830 6,67,29,678

Impairment Loss 5 14,55,389 -

Operating Profit / (Loss) (11,32,99,934) (9,79,93,134)
Finance Costs 26 7,54,40,249 11,61,61,530
Profit / (Loss) Before Staff Bonus (18,87,40,184) (21,41,54,664)
Staff Bonus - -
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (18,87,40,184) {21,41,54,664)

Income Tax Expenses of Current Year
Income Tax Expenses of Previous Years .
Deferred Tax-Income (Expense) 8 97,016 5,31,29,108
Net Profit / (Loss) For The Year (18,86,43,167) {16,10,25,555)
Other Comprehensive Income

(1) 1tems That Will Not Be Reclassified in Statement Of Profit and Losss -
Re-Measurement (Losses) / Gains on Post Employment Defined Benefit Plans - -
Equity Instruments Through Other Comprehensive Income . -
Income Tax Relating to Items That Will Not be Reclassifid to Profit or Loss - -

Total Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) For The Year -
(18,86,43,167) {16,10,25,555)

Total Comprehensive Income
The Accompanying Notes Form an Integral Part of the Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date attached

Arun Lal Shrestha

Tirtha Lal Maharjan Chandra Maharjan
Board Member Board Memiag

an Maharjan
Board Member

Board Member

Bijay Kumar Pant Rabindra Maharjan
Board Member Board Member

Santa Man Maharjan
Board Member

Dr. Shailesh Pradhan
Bodfd Member Board Member

CEO

Date: 13 Poush, 2082 A A Anilkandel
Place: Kathmandu ‘ l[ STAR For Kandel Al Associates,
’H/O SPITA L Chartered Accountants
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Star Hospital Limited
Sanepa, Lalitpur

Statement of Cash Flow

For the Period from 1st Shrawan, 2081 to 32nd Ashad, 2082 (16th July, 2024 to 16th July, 2025)

Figuresin NPR
particulars For the Year Ended on For the Year Ended on
32nd Ashad, 2082 31st Ashad, 2081
A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net Profit Before Tax (18,87,40,184) (21,41,54,664)
Adjustments For:
Depreciation & impairment Expenses 6,37,37,835 6,62,16,148
Net Finance Cost 7,54,40,249 11,61,61,530
Provision for Gratuity 24,50,075 47,91,749
Changein Other Non Current Assets - -
Changein inventories 1,66,90,211.38 (60,79,508)
Changein Other Current Assets (2,24,68,773) (2,08,82,335)
Changein Trade Receivables (2,17,07,644) (81,43,102)
Changein Other Non Current Liabilities - -
Changein Short Term Loan 7,95,95,847 (5,60,64,132)
Changein Employee Benefit Liabilities 2,92,25,002 2,95,606
Changein Trade Payables 20,94,375 (96,47,176)
Changein Other Current Liabilities 5,10,01,475 1,16,57,419
Payment of Gratuity (63,71,775) (5,53,675)
Income Tax Paid - -
Gain on Cancellation of Lease - (43,41,209)
Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities (1) 8,09,46,694 (12,07,43,350)
B. Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Changes in Share Capital (13,070) 11,31,20,900
Changesin Long Term Loan (1,51,13,003) 13,86,58,820
Net Finance Cost (7,54,40,249) (11,61,61,530)
Dividend Paid - -
Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities (2) (9,05,66,322) 13,56,18,190
C. Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Sale/(Purchase) of Tangible Fixed Assets (30,33,276) (36,31,111)
Sale/(Purchase) of Intangible Assets (6,44,613) (3,89,850)
Abandonment of Fixed Assets 14,55,389 -
Sale/(Purchase) of Investments - -
Net Cash Flow From Investing Activities (3) (22,22,499) (40,20,961)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1+2+3) (1,18,42,128) 1,08,53,879
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of The Year/Period 1,48,08,201 39,54,322
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of The Year/Period 29,66,072 1,48,08,201
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents 29,66,072 1,48,08,201
Cash in Hand 8,21,875 12,32,020
Balance with Banks 21,44,197 1,35,76,180

al Maharjan Chandra Maharjan Santa
Board Member Board Member Board Member

Bijay Kumar Pant
Board Member

Santa Man Maharjan
Board Member

Board Member Board Member
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STAR HOSPITAL LIMITED

Sanepa, Lalitpur

Notes to Accounts
Asat 32nd Ashad, 2082 (16th July, 2025)

Figuresin NPR
6 Intangible Assets

Particulars Software
Cost
Balance at 16 July 2023 1,26,68,723
Additions 3,89,850
Deletion -
Balance at 15 July 2024 1,30,58,573
Additions 6,44,613
Deletion 51,88,500
Balance at 16 July 2025 85,14,686
Amortization
Balance at 16 July 2023 99,82,110
Amortization for the Year 11,26,526
Deletion -
Balance at 15 July 2024 1,11,08,636
Amortization for the Year 2,13,479
Deletion 37,33,111
Balance at 16 July 2025 75,89,004
Carrying Amounts
Asat 15 July 2024 19,49,937
Asat 16 July2025 9,25,682

7 Investment in Subsidiaries

Particulars 32nd Ashad, 2082 31st Ashad, 2081

Modern Technical College Ltd. 7,50,00,000 7,50,00,000
Star Academy Lalitpur Ltd. 1,00,50,000 1,00,50,000
Star Nuwgkot Aspatal Pvt. Ltd. 25,00,000 25,00,000
/ Total 8,75,50,000 8,75,50,000
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STAR HOSPITAL LIMITED

Sanepa, Lalitpur

Notes to Accounts
As at 32nd Ashad, 2082 (16th July, 2025)

8 Deferred Tax Asset / (Liability)

10

Particulars

32nd Ashad, 2082 31st Ashad, 2081

Carrying Amounts
PPE (WDV)
Gratuity Provision
Land
Accumulated Loss
ROU
Lease Liability
Total Carrying Amount
Tax Base
PPE (WDV)
Gratuity Provision
Land
Accumulated Loss
ROU
Lease Liability
Total Tax Base
Temporary Difference

65,18,42,924 71,11,47,740
(2,38,13,747) (2,77,35,447)
40,80,27,000 40,80,27,000

2,56,968 12,84,835
(3,37,199) (15,64,394)
1,03,59,75,945 1,09,11,59,734

57,97,79,542 63,44,35,265

15,45,09,295 15,45,09,295
48,95,72,091 48,97,12,092

1,22,38,60,927 1,27,86,56,651
18,78,84,982 18,74,96,917

Applicable Tax Rate 25% 25%
Closing Deferred Tax (Liability)/Assets 4,69,71,245 4,68,74,229
Opening Deferred Tax (Liability)/Assets 4,68,74,229 (62,54,879)
Deffered Tax (Expense)/Income 97,016 5,31,29,108
Inventories
Particulars 32nd Ashad, 2082 31st Ashad, 2081
Star Hospital (A)
Consumable Stores 46,83,253 49,66,846
Star Pharmacy (B)
Pharmacy-Sub Store 1,04,28,619 2,68,35,237
Total 1,51,11,872 3,18,02,083
Account Receivables
Particulars 32nd Ashad, 2082 31st Ashad, 2081
Star Hospital (A)
Hospital Receivables 5,23,69,390 3,91,23,653
Star Pharmacy (B)
Pharmacy Recgivables 1,54,47,649 69,85,743
Total 6,78,17,039 4,61,09,396 -

(,/
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Advance, Deposits and Receivables

Particulars 32nd Ashad, 2082 31st Ashad, 2081
Star Hospital (A)
Modern Technical College 10,02,62,621 7,70,77,700
Bank Guarantee Performance 30,000 30,000
LC Margin 5,40,395 2,70,395
Advanceto Creditors 64,11,532 67,67,767
Advance Tax 34,40,749 28,63,179
Deposits 13,23,656 13,23,656
Prepaid Expenses 16,39,579 28,56,503
Rent & Other Advance 5,73,297 9,09,436
Advance for Investment in Star Nuwakot 3,70,77,798 3,70,76,917
VAT Receivable 3,70,297 3,70,297
Innovative college of Health Science Pvt Ltd 23,32,829 22,95,295
Star Pharmacy (B)
Advanceto Creditors 3,44,555 1,18,381
Deposit 1,58,530 94,018
Staff Advance 1,95,139 1,78,658

Total 15,47,00,976 13,22,32,203

Cash and Cash Equivalent

Particulars 32nd Ashad, 2082 31st Ashad, 2081
Star Hospital (A)
Cash in Hand 4,43,842 7,17,320
Balance With Banks 9,98,861 1,18,02,825
Star Pharmacy (B)
Cash in Hand 1,60,084 2,96,751
Counter Collection 27,112 27,112
Chequein Hand 1,90,837 1,90,837
Balance With Banks 11,45,336 17,73,355
Total 29,66,072 1,48,08,201
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STAR HOSPITAL LIMITED

Sanepa, Lalitpur

Notes to Accounts
Asat 32nd Ashad, 2082 (16th July, 2025)

Balance with Banks

Particulars 32nd Ashad, 2082 31st Ashad, 2081
Star Hospital (A) 9,98,861 1,18,02,825
Citizen Bank 104 (R) 97,820 97,820
Citizen Bank 38 (M) 1,000 1,08,07,590
Mahalaxmi Bikash Bank 76,915 76,915
(2499) NIC ASIA Bank (3044150095349002) 60,701 5,53,513
Prabhu Bank Ltd 10,556 10,000
Rastriya Banijya Bank 10,171 10,171
Sanima Bank Limited 10,915 10,915
Progressive Finance LTD 7,30,782 2,35,900
Star Pharmacy (B) 11,45,336 17,73,355
Citizen Bank International Ltd 5,63,177 16,45,182
Nic Asia Bank 4,69,340 15,354
Rastriya Banijya Bank 1,12,818 1,12,818
Total 21,44,197 1,35,76,180
Share Capital

Number of shares

Particulars 32nd Ashad, 2082 31st Ashad, 2081

Authorized 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000

Ordinary Shares of NPR 100 Each

Issued
Ordinary Shares of NPR 100 Each

1,00,00,00,000

90,00,000
90,00,00,000

1,00,00,00,000

90,00,000
90,00,00,000

Subscribed and Fully Paid Up 85,45,08,900 68,36,72,200
Ordinary Share of NPR 100 Each 85,45,08,900 68,36,72,200
Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end

Particulars 32nd Ashad, 2082 31st Ashad, 2081
Balance as at the Opening Date 68,36,72,200 68,36,72,200
Issue of Share Capital 16,18,85,800 -
Closing Share Capital 84,55,58,000 68,36,72,200
Advance for Share Capital 89,37,830 17,08,36,700
Balance as at the Closing Date 86,34,46,730 85,45,08,900

Rights,

ferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
mpany ha Q gle class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equjty shares rank equall/mth

v
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14 Reserve and Surplus
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17

Particulars 32nd Ashad, 2082 31st Ashad, 2081
Retained Earnings (85,87,05,208)  (67,00,62,040)
Revaluation Reserve 19,01,38,279 19,01,38,279
Revaluation of Land for the Year 26,11,86,000 -
Total (40,73,80,929) (47,99,23,761)
Net Defined Benefit Obligation
Particulars 32nd Ashad, 2082 31st Ashad, 2081
Gratuity
Opening Payable Balance 2,77,35,447 2,34,97,373
Interest Cost - -
Current Service Cost 24,50,075 47,91,749
Less: Payment Made 63,71,775 5,53,675
Closing payable balance 2,38,13,747 2,77,35,447
Leave encashment
Opening Balance - -
Interest Cost - -
Current Service Cost - -
Less: Payment Made - -
Closing Payable Balance - -
Borrowing
Particulars 32nd Ashad, 2082 31st Ashad, 2081
Overdraft Loan 3,01,45,000 98,92,798
Prabhu Bank Loan 10,08,28,862 9,11,85,000
12,33,23,100 9,19,89,700

Loan From Shareholders
Citizen Bank Loan
Demand Loan
VehicleLoan

59,35,13,846

4,81,388

57,90,61,538
1,05,69,805
11,10,511

Total

84,82,92,196

78,38,09,352

Long Term Loan (Non Current)

Particulars 32nd Ashad, 2082 31st Ashad, 2081

Citizen Bank Loan 53,68,76,153 56,30,13,846
Prabhu Bank Loan 6,88,61,052 8,84,55,000
Loan From Shareholders 12,33,23,100 9,19,89,700
VehicleLoan - 7,14,763
o~ Total / 72,90,60,305 74,41,73,308

%
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STAR HOSPITAL LIMITED

Sanepa, Lalitpur

Notes to Accounts
Asat 32nd Ashad, 2082 (16th July, 2025)
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Short Term Loan (Current)

Particulars 32nd Ashad, 2082 31st Ashad, 2081
Overdraft Loan 3,01,45,000 98,92,798
Demand Loan - 1,05,69,805
Citizen Bank loan 5,66,37,692 1,60,47,692
Prabhu Bank Loan 3,19,67,810 27,30,000
Vehicle Loan 4,81,388 3,95,748
Total 11,92,31,890 3,96,36,043
Account Payables
Particulars 32nd Ashad, 2082 31st Ashad, 2081
Star Hospital (A) ‘
Sundry Creditors 14,01,76,013 “13,52,33,285
Star Pharmacy (B)
Sundry Creditors 2,16,02,253 2,44,50,605
Total 16,17,78,265 15,96,83,890
Other Payables and Provisions
Particulars 32nd Ashad, 2082 31st Ashad, 2081
Star Hospital (A)
Patient Deposit 34,91,354 49,84,330
Payable to Star Academy 51,45,182 20,16,419
Other Payables 90,82,210 1,98,694
Ambulance Expenses Payable 34,500 34,500
Audit Fee Payable 8,72,285 6,49,285
Consultant Payable 6,66,87,685 5,44,97,651
Lease Liability 3,37,199 15,64,394
Staff Welfare Fund - 16,750
Board Meeting Allowance Payable 2,275 -
TDS Payables 4,45,48,230 2,76,44,904
Interest Payable on Director's Loan 2,32,43,367 1,02,45,744
Star Pharmacy (B)
SST & TDS on Salary 1,02,650 86,293
Patient Deposits 4,65,329 9,19,817
Other Payables 1,43,656 1,45,950
Advance From Customer P 1,917 1,51,633
o~ Total / 15,41,57,838 10,31,56,363
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Sanepa, Lalitpur

Notes to Accounts
Asat 32nd Ashad, 2082 (16th July, 2025)

Employee Payable

20 Particulars 32nd Ashad, 2082 31st Ashad, 2081
Star Hospital
PF Payables 51,25,788 4,69,032
CIT Payables 15,09,000 3,00,660
Staff Payables 4,85,31,539 2,81,82,953
Star Pharmacy
Staff Payables 42,33,433 16,83,632
PF Payables 5,80,738 2,09,220
CIT Payables 1,10,001 20,001

6,00,90,498 3,08,65,497
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STAR HOSPITAL LIMITED
Sanepa, Lalitpur
Notes to Accounts
For the Period from 1st Shrawan, 2081 to 32nd Ashad, 2082 (16th July, 2024 to 16th July, 2025)

Figuresin NPR
For the Year Ended on Forthe Year Ended on

21 Revenue

Particulars 32nd Ashad, 2082 31st Ashad, 2081
Star Hospital (A)
Hospital Sales 21,93,94,805 26,27,86,462
Star Pharmacy (B)
Pharmacy Sales 6,14,22,034 7,80,32,664
Total 28,08,16,838 34,08,19,126
22 CostofSales
particulars For the Year Ended on For the Year Ended on
32nd Ashad, 2082 31st Ashad, 2081
Star Hospital (A)
Opening Stock 49,66,846 65,46,910
Hospital Purchase and Direct Expenses (22.1) 10,54,78,777 13,72,24,028
Less: Closing Stock 46,83,253 49,66,846
Sub-Total (A) 10,57,62,370 13,88,04,092
Star Pharmacy (B)
Opening Stock 2,68,35,237 1,91,75,665
Pharmacy Purchase and Direct Expenses (22.1) 4,58,93,711 6,39,50,189
Less: Closing Stock 1,04,28,619 2,68,35,237
Sub- Total (B) 6,23,00,329 5,62,90,616
Total (A+B) 16,80,62,699 19,50,94,708
22.1 Purchase and Direct Expense
' particulars Forthe Year Ended on For the Year Ended on
32nd Ashad, 2082 31st Ashad, 2081
Star Hospital (A) 10,54,78,777 13,72,24,028
Purchase 1,82,82,049 1,96,31,438
Direct Expenses
Consultant Fees 7,66,65,903 10,45,76,167
Dialysis Expenses 24,12,563 28,91,704
Lab Test Expenses 15,51,861 27,74,467
Medicine Consumption 10,49,472 10,03,483
OT Consumable Expenses 3,87,777 6,94,412
Oxygen Gas 34,98,064 36,89,700
X-Ray Accessories 16,31,089 19,62,657
Star Pharmacy (B) 4,58,93,711 6,39,50,189
Purchase 4,58,93,711 6,39,50,189 (
. ~~_Total (A+B) 15,13/72,487 20,11,74,217 S
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STAR HOSPITAL LIMITED

Sanepa, Lalitpur

Notes to Accounts

For the Period from 1st Shrawan, 2081 to 32nd Ashad, 2082 (16th July, 2024 to 16th July, 2025)

Other Income

particulars For the Year Ended on For the Year Ended on
32nd Ashad, 2082 31st Ashad, 2081
Star Hospital (A)
Rental Income 29,84,468 28,48,065
OJTIncome 65,70,000 58,26,400
Interest Income 12,124 15,782
Miscellaneous Income 11,53,908 59,44,638
Star Pharmacy (B)
Other Income 1,235 -
Total 1,07,21,735 1,46,34,885
Employee Expenses
Particulars For the Year Ended on For the Year Ended on
32nd Ashad, 2082 31st Ashad, 2081
Gratuity Expenses 24,50,075 47,91,749
Outsource Staff Salary 1,49,11,833 1,27,52,313
P/F Contribution 26,91,435 29,67,407
Salary and Allowances 9,39,22,144 9,72,58,574
Staff Welfare 22,187 3,26,050
Training and Skill Development 8,000 -
Pharmacy Staff Salary 73,83,081 73,10,516
Total 12,13,88,755 12,54,06,609

Administrative Expenses

Particulars

For the Year Ended on

For the Year Ended on

32nd Ashad, 2082 31st Ashad, 2081
Star Hospital (A)
Advertisement Expenses 10,21,222 5,70,138
Service Charge 14,03,390 53,20,731
AGM Expenses - 3,24,550
Annual Maintenance Contract (AMC) 6,35,852 15,80,023
Computer Accessories 4,39,759 5,47,427
Electricity Expenses 75,32,318 77,91,381
Fooding & Lodging Expenses 58,71,595 73,81,616
House Keeping Expenses 12,07,560 18,28,093
Insurance Expenses 32,16,276 29,80,829
Email and Internet 6,60,884 6,07,854
Office Expenses 4,16,156 48,39,406

. Printing & Stationery
Rating Expenses

24,71,661
3,79,332
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STAR HOSPITAL LIMITED
Sanepa, Lalitpur
Notes to Accounts
For the Period from 1st Shrawan, 2081 to 32nd Ashad, 2082 (16th July, 2024 to 16th July, 2025)
Refreshment Expenses 5,44,655 4,94,305
Registration & Renewal Expenses 15,840 83,510
Security Expenses 87,64,732 83,91,692
Telephone Expenses 5,38,850 5,28,200
Uniform (Hospital) - 3,71,900
Wages 20,000 65,827
Water Expenses 44,010 1,04,035
Consultancy Charge 20,34,000 20,75,211
Internal Audit Fees 11,86,500 13,56,000
Cloths 17,280 55,480
Power and Fuel 27,02,187 28,83,867
Other Expenses (25.1) 42,22,141 78,84,733
Repair and Maintenance 24,53,370 22,52,405
Audit Fee 2,26,000 2,26,000
Bank Charges 16,33,854 16,89,472
Valuation Expenses 56,500 -
Board Meeting Allowances 1,78,500 -
Executive Committee Allowance 43,500 -
* Patient Management Charge 13,11,104 16,44,000
Total 5,01,93,830 6,67,29,678
25 OtherExpenses
Particulars Forthe Year Ended on Forthe Year Ended on
32nd Ashad, 2082 31st Ashad, 2081
Star Hospital (A) 42,22,141 78,33,230
Anniversary Day Expenses - 44,415
Donation 31,000 1,30,000
Parking Expenses - 955
Transportation Expenses 43,036 3,150
Travelling and Daily Expenses - 25,798
Vehicle Renewal Taxes 1,20,270 54,845
Penalty and Other Charge 2,68,972 37,66,714
Blood Donation Expenses 2,79,680 1,19,250
* Miscellanous Expenses 34,79,183 36,88,103
Star Pharmacy (B) - 51,503
Miscellanous Expenses - 51,503
Total 42,22,141 78,84,733
26 Finance Expense
Particulars Forthe Year Ended on For the Year Ended on
32nd Ashad, 2082 31st Ashad, 2081
Star Hospital (A) 7,54,40,249 11,61,61,530
Interest Expenses 7,53,37,658 11,46,94,502
Finance Expenses on Leased Liability 1,02,591 14,67,028
Star Pharmacy (B) - -
Interest Expenses - .

(-\/VExpenses to be disallowegras
2058.

Total

—— __ 7,58,40,249

11,61,61,530
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Star Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for FY 2081/82
All amount in Nepalese Rupees

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 32" Ashadh 2082

1. Reporting Entity:

Star Hospital Limited (“The Company”) is limited liability company domiciled in Nepal registered under
Company Act, 2063. The address of its registered office is Ward No.2 Sanepa, Lalitpur, Nepal. The company
is registered as public limited company on 15® Baisakh 2067 with registration number 1232/066/067. The
main aim for the establishment of the hospital is to provide quality health care facilities for the people.

1.1 Board of Directors:

The composition of Board of Directors as on 32™Ashad 2082 is as follow:

SN | Name Designation

1. Tirtha Lal Maharjan Chairman

2. Er. Basanta Chandra Marahatta Director

3. Arun Lal Shrestha Director

4. Chandra Maharjan Director

5. Santa Man Maharjan Director

6. Kiran Maharjan Director

7. Bijay Kumar Panta Director

8. Rajendra Shakya Director

9. Dr. Sailesh Pradhan Independent Director
10. | Dr. Rajeev Shrestha Independent Director

1.2 Substantial Shareholders:

Following are the shareholders of the hospital having shareholding exceeding 1% of the total paid up capital

as on 31st Ashad 2081:

S. No. Name of Shareholders Value

1 Subha Shree Holding Private Limited 57,505,000.00

2 Ramesh Maharjan 12,500,000.00

3 Tirtha Lal Maharjan 30,000,000.00

4 Chandra Maharjan 39,706,000.00

5 Santa Man Maharjan 15,500,500.00

6 Bikki Maharjan 13,445,800.00

7 Himalayan Everest Insurance Ltd. 106,500,000.00

8 Buddha Lumbini Group Pvt. Ltd. 10,100,000.00
Total 285,257,300.00
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Star Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for FY 2081/82
All amount in Nepalese Rupees

2. Basis of Preparation:

The company, while complying with the reporting standards, makes critical accounting judgement as
having potentially material impact on the financial statements. The significant accounting policies that
relate to the financial statements as a whole along with the judgements made are described herein.

Where an accounting policy is generally applicable to a specific item, the policy is described within that
relevant note. NFRS requires the company to exercise judgement in making accounting estimates. A
description of such estimates has been given in the relevant sections wherever they have been applied.

2.1 Statement of Compliance:

The Financial Statements of Star Hospital Limited for the year ended 32™ Ashadh 2082, comprising
Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement
of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and Notes to the Financial Statements (including Significant
Accounting Policies), have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(hereafter referred as NFRS), laid down by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal and in
compliance with the requirements of all applicable laws and regulations. .

2.2 Reporting Periods and Approval of the Financial Statements:

Reporting period of the hospital falls between beginning of Shrawan to end of Ashad next year (Mid July).
Accompanied Financial Statements were approved by the company's Board of Directors on 30 December,
2025.

2.3 Functional and Presentation Currency:

The financial statements are presented in functional and presentation currency of the Company i.e. Nepalese
Rupee (“NPR”) which is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates. All amount has been rounded to the nearest rupee, except when otherwise indicated.

2.4 Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgments:

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards requires
the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ due
to these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

The most significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies
that have most significant effect in the Financial Statements are as follows:

P
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Star Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for FY 2081/82
All amount in Nepalese Rupees

Going Concern:

The management have made an assessment of Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and
satisfied that it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the
management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may provide significant doubt upon hospital’s
ability to continue as a going concern and they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease operations of it.
Therefore, the Financial Statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments:
Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial

position can be derived from active markets, they are derived from observable market data. However, if
this is not available, judgment is required to establish fair values.

Useful Life and Residual Value of the Property:

Management reviews the useful life and residual values of property, plant and equipment at least once a
year. Such life are dependent upon an assessment of both the technical life of the assets and also their likely
economic life, based on various internal and external factors including relative efficiency and operating
costs.

Useful life is:

(a) the period over which an asset is expected to be available for use by an entity; or

(b) the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the assets by an entity.
Accordingly, depreciable lives are reviewed annually using the best information available to the

Management.

Fair Value of Property, Plant and Equipment:
The freehold land and buildings of the company are presented at cost. Since the property, plant and
equipment are not reflected at fair value, no revaluation has been carried at the reporting date.

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment:

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. Value in use is usually determined on the basis of discounted estimated future cash flows. This
involves management estimates on anticipated commodity prices, market demand and supply, economic
and regulatory environment, discount rates and other factors. Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to
changes in the above-mentioned factors could impact the carrying value of assets.

During the year, the Company discontinued the use of certain computer software due to changes in
operational requirements and technological obsolescence. As the software no longer generates future
economic benefits, management assessed the recoverable amount in accordance with applicable accounting
standards. Since the recoverable amount was determined to be nil, the carrying amount of the software
(Cogent, Dolphin Inplementation & Mavorion System Software) having carrying amount of Rs.
14,55,389.28 has been fully impaired and the resulting impairment loss has been recognized in the

("‘/
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Statement of Profit or Loss for the year. Accordingly, the carrying value of the said software has been
written down to zero as at the reporting date.

Commitments and Contingencies:

All discernible risks are accounted for in determining the amount of all known liabilities. Contingent
liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future events or
present obligations where the transfer of economic benefit is not probable or cannot be reliably measured.
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the Statement of Financial Position but are disclosed unless they

are remote.

Taxation:

The company is subject to income tax and judgment is required to determine the total provision for current,
deferred and other taxes due to the uncertainties that exist with respect to the interpretation of the applicable
tax laws, at the time of preparation of these Financial Statements. Deferred tax assets are recognized in
respect of tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the losses can be utilized. Judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits, together with future tax planning

strategies.

Classification of Investment Properties:

Management requires using its judgment to determine whether a property qualifies as an investment
property. The Company has developed criteria so it can exercise its judgment consistently. A property that
is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both and which generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by the Company is accounted for as investment properties. On the
other hand, a property that is used for operations or in the process of providing services or for administrative
purposes and which do not directly generate cash flows as a standalone-assets are accounted for as property,
plant and equipment. The Company assesses on an annual basis the accounting classification of its
properties taking into consideration the current use of such properties.

2.5 Discounting:

When the realization of assets and settlement of obligation is for more than one year, the Company considers
the discounting of such assets and liabilities where the impact is material. Various internal and external
factors have been considered for determining the discount rate to be applied to the cash flows of company.

2.6 Materiality and Aggregation:

In compliance with Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 01 (Presentation of Financial Statements), each
material class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements. Items of dissimilar nature
or functions too are presented separately unless they are immaterial. Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position only when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expenses are not offset in the

Statement of Profit or Loss unless required or permitted by an Accountmg Standard. w
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The Financial Statement of the company provides comparative information in respect of previous periods.
The accounting policies have been consistently applied by Company with those of the previous financial
year in accordance with NAS 01 Presentation of Financial Statements, except those which had to be
changed as a result of application of the new NFRS or expiry of the carve out period. Further, comparative
information is reclassified wherever necessary to comply with the current presentation.

3. Significant Accounting Policies:

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
Financial Statements, and deviations if any have been disclosed accordingly.

3.1 Basis of Measurement:

The Financial Statements of Company have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the

following material items in the Statement of Financial Position:

= Available for sale investments (quoted) are measured at fair value.

= Liabilities for defined benefit obligations are recognized at the present value of the defined benefit
obligation less the fair value of the plan assets. ’

= TFinancial assets and financial liabilities held at amortized cost.

3.2 Property, Plant and Equipment:

Recognition:

Property, plant and equipment are tangible items that are held for use in the production or supply of services,
for rental to others or for administrative purposes and are expected to be used during more than one period.
The Company applies the requirements of the Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 16 (Property, Plant and
Equipment) in accounting for these assets. Property, plant and equipment are recognized if it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can
be measured reliably measured.

The freehold land and buildings of the company are measured at cost and not reflected at fair value and no
revaluation has been carried at the reporting date.

Measurement:

An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies for recognition as an asset is initially measured at
its cost. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and cost incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of an item of property, plant & equipment. The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the
asset to a working condition for its intended use and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located. When parts of an item of property or equipment have different
useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Cost Model:
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day—to—day servicing, less

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Such cost includes the cost of replacing
part of the equipment when that cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria are met. /
J
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Revaluation Model:
The company has not applied the revaluation model to the any class of freehold land and buildings or other

assets.

Subsequent Cost:

The subsequent cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in
the carrying amount of the item, if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within that
part will flow to the Company and it can be reliably measured. The cost of day-to-day servicing of property,
plant and equipment are charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred.

De-recognition:

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use. The gain or loss arising from de-recognition of an item
of property, plant and equipment is included in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the item is
derecognized.

When replacement costs are recognized in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment,
the remaining carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. Major inspection costs are capitalized.
At each such capitalization, the remaining carrying amount of the previous cost of inspections is
derecognized. The gain or losses arising from de-recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is
included in profit or loss when the item is derecognized.

Depreciation:

Land is not depreciated. All other property, plant and equipment are depreciated from the date they are
available for use or in respect of self-constructed assets, from the date that the construction is completed
and ready for use. Depreciation is charged on straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the
property, plant and equipment. The useful life of the assets and the corresponding rates at which the assets
are depreciated are as follows:

S.N Category of Assets Useful Life
1 Buildings 50 Years

2 Vehicles 7 years

3 Office Equipment 6 Years

4 Furniture & Fixtures 6 Years

5 Plant and Equipment 5- 10 Years
6 Computers & Printers 6 Years

Changes in Estimates:

Useful life is either the period of time which the asset is expected to be used or the number of production
or similar units expected to be obtained from the use of asset. The estimated useful life, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Capital Work in Progress:
These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildinwtﬂant and

machinery and system development, awaiting capitalization. Capital work-in-progress woud be transferred
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to the relevant asset when it is available for use, i.e. when it is in the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Capital work-in-progress is stated at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part
of the cost of an asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that the company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Intangible Assets:

Recognition:

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance, held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, for rental to others or for administrative purposes. An intangible
asset is recognized if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will
flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. An intangible asset is initially measured
at cost. Intangible assets of the company consist of the accounting software purchased by the hospital.

Subsequent Expenditure:

Expenditure incurred on software is capitalized only when it is probable that this expenditure will enable
the asset to generate future economic benefits in excess of its originally assessed standard of performance
and this expenditure can be measured and attributed to the asset reliably. All other expenditure is expensed
as incurred.

Amortization of Intangible Assets:
Intangible Assets, except for goodwill, are amortized on a straight-line basis in the Statement of Profit or
Loss from the date when the asset is available for use, over the best of its useful economic life based on a
pattern in which the asset’s economic benefits are consumed by the company. Amortization methods, useful
lives, residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if appropriate. The company
assumes that there is no residual value for its intangible assets.
Assets Category Useful Life
Computer Software 5 years

De-recognition of Intangible Assets:

The carrying amount of an item of intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use. The gain or loss arising on de recognition of an item of intangible assets
is included in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the item is derecognized.

Impairment of Tangible & Intangible Assets:

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable’amount of an
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individual asset, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest Company
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognized immediately in Statement of Profit or loss & Other Comprehensive Income.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized immediately in Statement of Profit or loss & Other Comprehensive Income.

3.5 Financial Instruments:

3.5.1

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the company becomes a party to the contract
embodying the related financial instruments. Al financial assets, financial liabilities and financial guarantee
contracts are initially measured at transaction cost and where such values are different from the fair value,
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through Statement
of Profit or loss & Other Comprehensive Income) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured
on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through Statement of Profit or loss &
Other Comprehensive Income are immediately recognized in the Statement of Profit or loss & Other
Comprehensive Income.

In case of interest free or concession loans/debentures/preference shares given to subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, the excess of the actual amount of the loan over initial measure at fair value is accounted
as an equity investment. Investment in equity instruments issued by subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are measured at cost less impairment. Investment in preference shares/debentures of the
subsidiaries are treated as equity instruments if the same are convertible into equity shares or are redeemable
out of the proceeds of equity instruments issued for the purpose of redemption of such investments.
Investment in preference shares/ debentures not meeting the aforesaid conditions is classified as debt
instruments at amortized cost.

Financial Assets Classification:

Company classifies its financial assets based on its business model whose objective is to hold assets in order
to collect the contractual cash flow characteristics, as follows:
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Financial Assets at Amortized Cost:

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost if these financial assets are held within a
business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income:

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are
held within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI include equity and debt securities. Equity Investments classified
as ‘Financial assets at fair value through OCI’ are those which are neither classified as ‘Held for Trading’
nor ‘Designated at fair value through profit or loss’. Debt securities in this category are intended to be held
for an indefinite period of time and may be sold in response to need for liquidity or in response to changes
in the market conditions.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss:
A financial asset is classified as fair value through profit or loss if it is held for trading or is designated at

fair value through profit or loss.

3.5.2 Financial Liabilities Classification:

At the inception, company determines the classification of its financial liabilities. Accordingly, financial
liabilities are classified as:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
o Financial liabilities held for trading.
o Tinancial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

3.5.3 Measurement:

Initial Measurement:

All financial instruments are measured initially at their fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to acquisition or issue of such financial instruments except in the case of such financial assets
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, as per the Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 39 (Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement). Transaction cost in relation to financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are dealt with the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Subsequent Measurement:
A financial assets or financial liability is subsequently measured either at fair value or at amortized cost
based on the classification of financial assets or liability. Financial asset or liability classified as amortized

cost is subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. "
~ N - v,
, i
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The amortized cost of the financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial assets or financial
liability is measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the
maturity amount, and minus any reduction for impairment or un-collectability.

Financial assets classified at fair value are subsequently measured at fair value. The subsequent changes in
fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in statement of profit or loss
whereas of financial assets at fair value thorough comprehensive income are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Derecognition — Financial Assets:

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flow from the financial
assets expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risk and rewards of the ownership of the financial assets are transferred or in which
the company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risk and rewards of the ownership and it
does not retain control of the financial assets.

On de-recognition of a financial assets, the difference between the carrying amount of the assets (or the
carrying amount allocated to the portion of the assets derecognized) and the sum of (i) the consideration
received (including any new assets obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognized in OCI is recognized in income or expenditure. Any interest in transferred
financial assets that qualify for de-recognition that is created or retained by the company is recognized as a
separate assets or liability.

Derecognition — Financial Liabilities:

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or canceled or
expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is
recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Statement of Financial
Position when and only when Company has a legal right to set off the recognized amounts and it intends
either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and
expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under NFRSs or for gains and losses arising
from a group of similar transaction such as in trading activity. ‘

Fair Value Measurement:

“Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair vaJue measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability tdkes place either:

M\ QN A
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o In the principal market for the asset or liability or
In the absence of principal market, in the most advantageous market for asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Valuation technique using quoted market price: financial instruments with quoted prices for
identical instruments in active markets.

Level 2 - Valuation technique using observable inputs: financial instruments with quoted prices for similar
instruments in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and
financial instruments valued using models where all significant inputs are observable.

Level 3 — Valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs: financial instruments valued using
valuation techniques where one or more significant inputs are unobservable.

When available, the company measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in an active
market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
and represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. If a market for a
financial instrument is not active, the company establishes fair value using a valuation technique. Valuation
techniques include using recent arm’s length transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties (if
available), reference to the current fair value of other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted
cash flow analyses.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the transaction price —
i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. However, in some cases, the fair value of a financial
instrument on initial recognition may be different to its transaction price. If such fair "value is evidenced
by comparison with other observable current market transactions in the same instrument (without
modification) or based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable markets,
then the difference is recognized in profit or loss on initial recognition of the instrument. In other cases, the
difference is not recognized in profit or loss immediately but is recognized over the life of the instrument
on an appropriate basis or when the instrument is redeemed, transferred, or sold, or the fair value becomes

observable.

All unquoted equity investments are recorded at cost, considering the non-trading of promoter shares up to
the date of balance sheet, the market price of such shares could not be ascertained with certainty. Hence,
these investments are recognized at cost net of impairment, if any.

1.5.8 Impairment of Financial Assets:

At each reporting date, company assesses whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss is impaired. A financial asset or
group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if and only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events, that have occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an ‘incurred
loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognized for financial assets measured at amortized cost and
fair value through the statement of profit or loss.

The company recognizes impairment loss on trade receivables using expected credit loss model. For
financial assets whose credit risk has not significantly increased since jAitial rec%m{on, loss allowanc;[

(\ C,\/ ()~ Pagel110f20\X 7




A
4
rESTAR

Compassionate care with comfort

Star Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for FY 2081/82
All amount in Nepalese Rupees

equal to twelve months expected credit losses is recognized. Loss allowance equal to the lifetime expected
credit losses is recognized if the credit risk on the financial instruments has significantly increased since

initial recognition.

3.6 Cash and Cash Equivalent:

Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position comprise cash at company and on hand
and demand deposits with an original maturity of three months or less and highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value net of outstanding company overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s
cash management.

3.7 Investment Property:

Investment property is property (land or a building or part of a building or both) held (by the owner or by
the lessee under a finance lease) to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both but not for sale in the
ordinary course of business.

Measurement:
Investment property is accounted for under Fair Value in the Financial Statements. In the absence of

information related to market price of the properties, the amount outstanding at the time of settlement of
loan has been considered as the fair value of the asset.

De-recognition:

Investment properties are derecognized when they are disposed of or permanently withdrawn from use
since no future economic benefits are expected. Transfers are made to and from investment property only
when there is a change in use. When the use of a property changes such that it is reclassified as Property,
Plant and Equipment, its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent accounting.

3.8 Borrowing Cost:

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing costs.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part
of the cost of the asset until such time as the assets are substantially ready for the intended use or sale. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

3.9 Inventories:

Cost of inventories includes cost of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Inventories of stores, spare parts and loose tools are
stated at the lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories in the ordinary course of business less all estimated costs of

completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. .
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3.10 Income Tax:

Income Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. It is recognized in Profit or loss except to the
extent that relate to items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income (OCI).

3.10.1 Current Tax:

Current tax comprises of expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the payable or receivable in respect to previous years. Current tax is measured using tax
rate enacted or subsequently enacted at the reporting date.

3.10.2 Deferred Tax:

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary difference between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the tax base of these assets and liabilities as per the legislation.
Deferred tax is measured using tax rate enacted or subsequently enacted at the reporting date.

3.11 Provision and Contingent Liabilities:

Provisions are recognized when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually

certain.

The expense relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit or loss & Other Comprehensive
Income net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance

cost.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the entity.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there

is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The company does not
recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the standalone financial statements. %-—» /
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A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the company
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The
provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and
the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the company
recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each reporting period.

A legal case has been filed against the Hospital by a creditor for recovery of dues on account of alleged
non-payment of outstanding amounts. The creditor has claimed an amount of Rs. 3,69,30,249.84, whereas,
as per the Hospital’s books of account, the outstanding payable balance amounts to Rs. 3,01,70,867.99,
which has been duly recognized under account payables in the financial statements. The matter is currently
under judicial consideration and the final outcome of the case cannot be ascertained at this stage. Based on
management’s evaluation of the facts of the case and legal advice obtained, no additional provision has
been considered necessary beyond the amount already recorded in the books. Any liability arising, if any,
will be accounted for in the period in which the matter is finally resolved.

The details of such legal case are as follows:

Name of Party As per our As per legal case file
ledger Rs)  “Amount (Rs.) | Interest (Rs.)
A.G. Healthcare Technology Pvt. Ltd. 1,57,61,237.00 | 1,57,61,237.38 0.00
Bio-Med International Pvt. Ltd. 41,64,929.99 | 41,68,029.66 | 14,63,948.80
Lumbini Healthcare Pvt. Ltd. 58,29,520.00 | 1,25,83,980.83 0.00
The Medical Solution Pvt. Ltd. 44,15,181.00 | 44,17,001.97 | 15,55,228.00

3.12 Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to company and
the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before
revenue is recognized.

Dividend and Interest Income:

Dividend income (net of withholding taxes) from investments is recognized when the shareholder’s right
to receive payment has been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the company and the amount of income can be measured reliably). In case of stock dividend only the
number of shares is increased.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that

, . . ..
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition. A

Other Income:
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Other income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Other income is accrued on a time

basis
3.13 Interest Expenses:

Interest Expenses has been recognized on accrual basis based on the coupon rate for loan.

3.14 Staff Bonus:

Provision for a staff bonus is made as per the prevalent practices at ten percent of accounting net profit
including such bonuses. As the company is at a loss, no amount has been provided for a staff bonus.

3.15 Employee Benefits:

Defined Contribution Plan:

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment plan under which an entity pays a fixed contribution into
a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for
contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an employee benefit expense in the statement
of profit or loss in the periods during which services are rendered by employees. Employees are eligible for
Employees’ Provident Fund Contributions in accordance with the respective statutes and regulations.
contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit or loss
as incurred.

Defined Benefit Plan:

The new Labor Act 2074 is applicable from Bhadra 19, 2074 which requires payment of minimum Gratuity
of at least 8.33% of basic salary to all staff (equal to one month salary per year). The company has not yet
decided for the revision of its employees’ policies as per New Labor Act. As the act is already in force, the
company has decided to provide gratuity to old staff who are in service now on the basis of existing policy
of the company till Ashad End, 2082. The company hasn’t done actuarial valuation till date

Employees' Provident Fund:
The company contribute 10% of the salary of each employee to the Employees’ Provident Fund managed

by government of Nepal. Regular monthly contributions are made to provident fund and are deposited with
the Employees' Provident Fund (Organization), which are charged to revenue.

3.16 Leases:

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease or it contains a lease, is based on the substance of
the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on
the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Finance Lease:

Agreements which transfer to counterparties substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the
ownership of assets, but not necessarily legal title, are classified as finance lease. When company is the
lessor under finance lease, the amounts due under the leases, after deduction of unearned interest income,

are included in, ‘Loanz%iivables from Other Customers’, as appropriate. Inwcome receivable
T .
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is recognized in ‘Net Interest Income’ over the periods of the leases so as to give a constant rate of return
on the net investment in the leases. When company is a lessee under finance leases, the leased assets are
capitalized and included in ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ and the corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in ‘Other liabilities’. A finance lease and its corresponding liability are recognized initially at the
fair value of the asset or if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. Finance charges payable
are recognized in ‘Interest expenses’ over the period of the lease based on the interest rate implicit in the
lease s0 as to give a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Operating Lease:

All other leases are classified as operating leases. When acting as lessor, Company includes the assets
subject to operating leases in ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ and accounts for them accordingly.
Impairment losses are recognized to the extent that residual values are not fully recoverable and the carrying
value of the assets is thereby impaired. Lease payments under an operating lease are recognized as an
expense as per NFRS 16 under Depreciation charge on right of use of assets and interest expense on lease
liability basis over the lease term.

3.17 Foreign Currency Transaction:

The functional currency of the company is determined on the basis of the primary economic environment
in which it operates. The functional currency of the Company is Nepalese Rupee (N PR).

In preparing the financial statements, the transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the

transactions.

At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognized in Statement of Profit or loss & Other
Comprehensive Income in the period in which they arise.

3.18 Share Capital and Reserves:

Share capital and reserves are different classes of equity claims. Equity claims are claims on the residual
interest in the assets of the entity after deducting all its liabilities. Changes in equity during the reporting
period comprise income and expenses recognized in the statement of financial performance; plus
contributions from holders of equity claims, minus distributions to holders of equity claims.

3.19 Earnings Per Share:

e Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) attributable to the equity shareholders
for the year by the wemage number of equity shares oujstanding during the yea e weighted

\ <"\ f
\ o Ty

a2\

Page 16 of 20

®R sRuce fofcsal qy-qgsit aiffs aemRer a1 (@SB




A
SYSTAR

HOSPITAL

Compassionate

re with comfort

Star Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for FY 2081/82
All amount in Nepalese Rupees

average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for treasury shares, bonus issue,
bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders, share split and reverse share split (consolidation of

shares).

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the year as adjusted for dividend,
interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive
potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if
their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary
operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period,
unless they have been issued at a later date.

Risk Management Framework:

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
company’s risk management framework. The company’s risk management policies are established to
identify and analyses the risks faced by the company to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to
monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in market conditions and company’s activities. The company aims to maintain a disciplined
and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Board of Directors oversees how management monitors compliance with the company’s risk

management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in
relation to the risks faced by the company.

Credit Risk Management:

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the company’s receivables from
customers. The management does not believe that the company has any exposure to credit risk.

Market Risk Management:

Market risk is the risk that changes in market price, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity
prices will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of
market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters,
while optimizing the return. The company currently has no transactions which expose it primarily to the
financial risks of changes in interest rates, equity prices etc.

Liquidity Risk Management:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated
with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The company’s
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that will always have sufficient liquidity to
meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage/fo\the company’s reputation.
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Capital Management:

The company manages its capital to ensure that the company will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximizing the returns to stakeholders. Currently, the company is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements.

The company’s management reviews the capital structure of the company on a regular basis. As part of this
review, the management considers the cost of capital and the risk associated with the capital.

Segment Reporting:

The company is engaged in providing quality medical facilities to patients. The executive committee of the
company (being the chief operating decision maker) assesses performance and allocates resources for the
business of the company as a whole and hence the management considers company’s business activities as
a single operating segment and no segment disclosures have been made in these financial statements.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities:

Provisions are recognized when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive as a result of
as past event, it is probable that the company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the

obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received, and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount
cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions but are disclosed unless the
possibility of outflow of resources is remote. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the
financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that
an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognized in the period in which
the change occurs.

There are no reportable contingent liabilities or commitments as at the year end.

Disaster Management:

A disaster is a sudden, calamitous event that seriously disrupts the functioning of a community or society
and causes human, material, and economic or environmental losses that exceed the community’s or
society’s ability to cope using its own resources. Disaster occurs when a hazard impact on vulnerable
people. Disasters are older than mankind. We can't control the hazard like earthquake, flood, fire, and
landslide and so on but we can minimize the damage which may cause by such hazards. Preparedness is
the key point for minimizing the loss or damage which may occur due to the disasters. As we know hazard
are older than the mankind so there is some trend in occurrence of such events like flood, earthquake so we
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though the process or hazard are natural so we cannot exactly identify it but by listing possible hazard like
flood, landslide and fire and so on which may occur we can only reduce the damage by reducing such thing

on exposure of Disaster.

4.5

Events After the Reporting Period:

The company monitors and assesses events that may have potential impact to qualify as adjusting and/ or
non-adjusting events after the end of the reporting period. All adjusting events are adjusted in the book with
additional disclosures and non-adjusting material events are disclosed in the notes.

4.6

Related Party and Transaction with the Related Party:

Disclosure has been made in respect of the transactions in which one party has the ability to control or
exercise significant influence over the financial and operating policies / decisions of the other, irrespective

of whether a price is charged.
The company identifies the following as the related parties under the requirements of NAS 24.

(a) The member of board of directors

(b)  The key management personnel of the entity.
(c)  The Subsidiary of the entity and its board of directors and key management personnel

(d)  The close member of the family of any individual referred to in (a) or (c) or entity in which the close
member holds interest in.

Board meeting allowance for Chairman is Rs. 6,000 and other members are Rs. 5,000.

Following related party transaction have been observed:

Name of Related . . Transaction
S.N. Parties Relation Transaction Type Amount (Rs.)
1. |Dr Sandesh GC Chief o;zecrgg)g Officer | Salary Expenses | 35 5 600.00
2 Pravin Kumar Tegi Chief Administration Salary Expenses 29.71,600.00

Officer
3. Yograj Sharma Kandel Chief Ex(e é:gt(l)\;e Officer Salary Expenses 19,71,921.00
4. ISjZI Academy Lalitpur Subsidiary Company OJT Income 65,70,000.00
Balances from related party have been observed as follows:

Name of Related . . Closing
S.N. Parties Relation Transaction Type Amount (Rs.)
1. Tirtha Lal Maha.%m\ Chairman Loan Taken 60,00,000.00
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Chief Operating Officer 12,50,000.00
2. Dr. Sandesh GC (CO0) Loan Taken Cr
3. | Pravin Kumar Tegi Chief  Administration | ; . Toven 7,50,000.00 Cr
Officer
4. Arun Lal Shrestha Director Loan Taken 1’23’50’000'?:2
5. Rajendra Shakya Director Loan Taken 3’51’50’000'?:2
. Son of Chandra Maharjan 70,00,000.00
6. Laxman Maharjan (Director) | Loan Taken Cr
. . 61,00,000.00
7. Kiran Maharjan Director Loan Taken Cr
. 20,00,000.00
8. Chandra Mahajan Director Loan Taken Cr
51,45,181.57
9. Star Academy Subsidiary Company Payable _ Cr
. . : : 2,83,50,000.00
10. Kishor Kumar Maharjan Co-Orc'lmator (Executive Loan Taken Cr
Committee)
Advance to Modern 10,02,62,621.0
11. Technical College Subsidiary Company Receivable 9Dr
Advance to Star 3,70,77,797.73
12. Nuwakot Subsidiary Company Receivable Dr
ive Coll 23,32,829.00
13. Innovative College Subsidiary Company Receivable Dr
Modern Technical 38,40,620.55
14. College Subsidiary Company Loan Given Dr
Modern Technical 7,50,00,000.00
15. College Subsidiary Company Investment Dr
Star Academy Lalitpur 1,00,50,000.00
16. Ltd. Subsidiary Company Investment Dr
. 25,00,000.0
17. | Star Nuwakot HOSPU?'\ Subsidiary Company Investment /g/

7
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Ring Road

State-of-the-art Gl Center
State-of-the-art ICU
Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU)
24hrs EMS/HEMS
24hrs Pathology Lab
24hrs Radiology
24hrs Pharmacy
3 Modular OTs
Skin & Hair Clinic
Geriatric Care Service

Wellness Center

Total Knee/Hip Replacement and Spine Clinics
Total Gynecology and Obsterician Services
Advanced Pediatric Clinic
Neuro Surgery Services
Psychiatrics/Psychology Services
Dental Services
Diabetes Clinic
Pulmonary Clinic
Advanced Blood Transfusion Service Center
Urology Services
Nephrology Services

‘AI For More information, Please Call
’IS TA R +977-1-5450197, 5450198, 5440478, 5452227
Sanepa Height-2, Ring Road, Lalitpur, Nepal
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